
NIXA CITY COUNCIL 
Tentative Agenda 

July 11th, 2022 
7:00 PM 

NIXA CITY HALL 
715 W. MT. VERNON 

This meeting will be conducted at 715 W. Mt. Vernon. Individuals may view the meeting live on our 
YouTube channel: https://www.youtube.com/c/CityofNixa 

Call to Order 
Roll Call 
Pledge of Allegiance 

Visitors (Speaker Card Required; Comments Limited to 5 Minutes): 
None Scheduled 

Presentation: 
Sara Fields – Ozarks Transportation Organization 

Ordinances (First Reading and Public Hearing; Comments Limited to 5 Minutes; No 
Council Vote Anticipated): 

Council Bill #2022-071 Rezoning the Real Property Generally Located at 906 Westview 
Drive From a Neighborhood Commercial District to an R-1 Single-Family Residential 
District  

Council Bill #2022-072 Rezoning the Real Property Generally Located at the Southeast 
Corner of North Cheyenne Road and East North Street From a General Commercial 
District and R-3 Multi-Family District to a Planned Unit Development  

Council Bill #2022-073 Amending Chapter 22, Article I, of the Nixa City Code by Adding 
Thereto a New Section and Amending the City’s Technical Specifications Manual to 
Provide for an Exemption From Outside the City Limit Water and Sewer 

Resolutions (Public Hearing; Comments Limited to 5 Minutes; Council Vote Anticipated): 
Resolution #2022-071 Authorizing the City Administrator to Execute a Contract with 
Lynn’s Electric, LLC for Outdoor Lighting Improvements to City Hall 

Resolution #2022-072 Authorizing the Issuance of a Beautification Façade Grant for 
Proposed Improvements at 107 South Main Street 

Resolution #2022-073 Authorizing the City Administrator to Execute a Contract with 
Playcore Wisconsin, Inc. for Renovations to the McCauley Park Playground 

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityofNixa


Resolution #2022-074 Authorizing the City Administrator to Execute a Contract with 
Sapp Design Associates Architects for Design Services for a Municipal Fieldhouse 
Facility 

 
Resolution #2022-075 Authorizing the City Administrator to Execute a Contract with 
SWT Design for Design Services Related to the Eoff Family Century Farm Park 

 
Mayor and Council Member Reports: 
 
Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Council/ Staff Liaisons 
Jarad Giddens/Doug Colvin-Public Works Darlene Graham/Joe Campbell-Police 

Amy Hoogstraet/Matt Crouse-Park  Aron Peterson/ -Planning/Development 
Shawn Lucas/Jennifer Evans-Finance & Amanda Hunsucker-Human Resources  
Justin Orf/Cindy Robbins-Administration/Court & Drew Douglas-Communications 



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
Issue: AN ORDINANCE OF THE NIXA CITY COUNCIL AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING 

MAP BY CHANGING THE CLASSIFICATION OF APPROXIMATELY 0.38 ACRES 
LOCATED ALONG THE 900 BLOCK OF NORTH WESTVIEW DRIVE FROM 
NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL (NC) TO SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (R-1) 

 
Date:   July 11, 2022 
 
Submitted By: Planning and Development Department 
 
 
 
Background 
 
Terry Fielder is the owner of 906 North Westview Drive.  As the owner of the real property, Mr. Fielder 
has applied to rezone the site from the Neighborhood Commercial (NC) zoning to Single-Family 
residential (R-1) zoning. The subject property is located in the Young Addition Subdivision, which was 
originally platted in 1976. This property once featured a single-family house. Sometime in 2009, the 
home was demolished due to a fire and has been considered a vacant lot since.  
 
 
Analysis 
 
Land Use 
 
The property subject to the application is presently vacant and contains no buildings or structures, just 
the remnants of a house foundation. The subject property is bounded by North Westview Drive to the 
west; Neighborhood Commercial zoned single-family residences to the north and south, and single-
family residences zoned R-1 to the east. The general character of surrounding land uses is single-family 
residential. 
 
The proposed land use change is consistent with the land uses in the vicinity.  
 
Transportation 
 
The subject property is directly served by North Westview Drive (local). Traffic to/from the subject 
property will come from/to Northview Road (collector). There is no existing pedestrian or multi-modal 
facility serving the site. 
 
The impact of traffic generated from potential residential development of the subject property is not 
sizeable relative to the capacity of infrastructure serving the site. 
 
Public Utilities (Water, Wastewater, Electric) 
 
Municipal water, sanitary sewer, and electric utilities are immediately accessible to the site and are all 
sufficient in capacity to serve a single-family residential land use. The site is served by the Northeast 



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Regional Lift Station that has sufficient capacity to serve a single-family residential land use at this site. 
Water service to the site is of sufficient capacity to provide adequate fire suppression. 
 
Stormwater Management 
 
The subject property is not served by regional detention facilities and does not appear to be affected by 
flood hazard area or karst topography.  Development of the site must conform to the City’s regulations 
concerning stormwater management. 
 
Other Public Services 
 
The proposed zoning change could potentially add traffic and population to the City’s jurisdiction, which 
will impact a variety of public services in proportion to those increases. Ideally, the impact of these 
additional residents and patrons will produce economies sufficient to cover additional costs. 
 
Planning and Zoning Commission 
 
A public hearing was held 7/5/2022 at the July regular meeting of the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
Staff presented the rezone. During the public hearing a representative of the property owner spoke. She 
mentioned that the property is under contract contingent on the rezone. She also spoke about the 
struggle and lack of interest on the listing when it was listed as commercial and how lenders were not 
offering traditional loans on the property. The rezone was unanimously approved by the Commission. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends approval of this application. 



COUNCIL BILL NO. 2022- 071    ORDINANCE NO.____________ 

Page 1 of 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NIXA REZONING THE REAL 1 
PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED AT 906 WESTVIEW DRIVE FROM A 2 
NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL DISTRICT TO AN R-1 SINGLE-FAMILY 3 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT. 4 

_________________________ 5 
 6 
 WHEREAS an application has been filed for a zoning change of the property 7 
generally located at 906 Westview Drive, said Application is attached hereto as “Council 8 
Bill Exhibit A”: and 9 
 10 
 WHEREAS the Application requests that the City Council rezone said property 11 
from the Neighborhood Commercial District to the R-1 Single-Family Residential District; 12 
and 13 
 14 
 WHEREAS the Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 15 
Application at the Commission’s July 5, 2022, meeting; and 16 
 17 

WHEREAS the Commission, after considering the Application, staff’s 18 
recommendation regarding the Application, and after holding a public hearing on the 19 
Application, issued a recommendation of approval of the Application; and 20 
 21 
 WHEREAS the City Council, now having considered the Application, staff’s 22 
recommendation regarding the Application, and after providing an opportunity for public 23 
comment on the Application, now desires to rezone the subject property and amend the 24 
City’s official zoning map to reflect City Council’s action. 25 
 26 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 27 
NIXA, AS FOLLOWS, THAT: 28 

 29 
SECTION 1: The real property generally located at 906 Westview Drive and being 30 

more specifically described on “Council Bill Exhibit A” as “ALL OF LOT TWENTY-SIX (26) 31 
OF YOUNGS ADDITION, A SUBDIVISION IN CHRISTIAN COUNTY, MISSOURI, 32 
ACCORDING TO THE RECORDED PLATE THEREOF”, is hereby rezoned from a 33 
Neighborhood Commercial District, or such other zoning district that may apply to said 34 
real property, to a R-1 Single-Family Residential District and the regulations applicable to 35 
said district, as established in the Nixa City Code, shall hereafter apply to said real 36 
property. “Council Bill Exhibit A,” is hereby incorporated by this reference as though said 37 
Exhibit was fully set forth herein.  38 
 39 

SECTION 2: The Director of Planning and Development, pursuant to section 117-40 
57 of the Nixa City Code, shall amend the City’s official zoning map, said map being 41 
established pursuant to section 117-56 of the Nixa City Code, to reflect the zoning action 42 
contemplated by this Ordinance. 43 

 44 



COUNCIL BILL NO. 2022- 071    ORDINANCE NO.____________ 

Page 2 of 2 

SECTION 3: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its final 45 
passage by the City Council and after its approval by the Mayor, subject to the provisions 46 
of section 3.11(g) of the City Charter.  47 
 48 
ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL THIS ___ DAY OF _____, 2022. 49 
         50 
        ATTEST: 51 
 52 
__________________________    ________________________ 53 
PRESIDING OFFICER     CITY CLERK  54 
   55 
   56 
APPROVED BY THE MAYOR THIS ___ DAY OF _____, 2022. 57 
 58 
        ATTEST: 59 
 60 
__________________________    ________________________ 61 
MAYOR       CITY CLERK 62 
          63 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:     64 
        65 
________________________ 66 
CITY ATTORNEY            67 



nwoodman
Text Box
COUNCIL BILL EXHIBIT A









N 
MA

SS
EY

 B
LV

D N 
DA

BN
EY

 AV
E

W NORTHVIEW RD

N 
GE

RA
LD

 D
R

N 
NO

RT
HV

IEW
 D

R

N 
KE

NN
ET

H 
ST

N 
WE

ST
VIE

W
 D

R

W YOUNG ST

N 
MA

SS
EY

 B
LV

D

N 
KE

NN
ET

H 
ST

409409409
411
411
411
411411411411

815

505

460

827

825

911

903

907

825

805

910
913

908

910

902

904

906

908

905

907

909

812

814

811

806

814

811

819

902

806

808

810

805

807

809

804

808

810

812

813

815

817

311

903

907

911

904

906

903

911

904

906

901
901

312807

311

312

902

905

409

1001

1005

1009
1007

1003

10111011

1003

1001

Lots

Zoning
GC

HC

M-1

NC

R-1

R-3

R-4

RZN 22-005



 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
Issue: AN ORDINANCE OF THE NIXA CITY COUNCIL AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING 

MAP BY CHANGING THE CLASSIFICATION OF APPROXIMATELY 8.35 ACRES 
LOCATED AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTH CHEYENNE ROAD AND 
EAST NORTH STREET INTERSECTION FROM GENERAL COMMERCIAL (GC) AND R-
3 MULTI-FAMILY TO PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT MIXED USE (PUD-MU) 

 
Date:   July 11, 2022 
 
Submitted By: Planning and Development Department 
 
 
 
Background 
 
The property owner of approximately 8.35 acres of land located at the Southeast corner of the 
intersection of North Cheyenne Valley Road and East North Street, has applied to rezone the site from 
the R-3 Multi-Family and General Commercial (GC) into the Planned Unit Development -Mixed Use 
(PUD-MU) zoning district. The property is currently divided into two GC lots and one R-3 lot.   
 
Analysis 
 
Land Use 
 
The property subject to the application is presently vacant and contains no buildings. The subject 
property is bounded by North Street to the north, Cheyenne Road to the west, and single-family 
residences to the south and east. The general character of surrounding land uses is predominantly 
single-family residential and undeveloped general commercial zoning adjacent to the Cheyenne and 
North intersection. 
 
The proposed land use change is consistent with the current zoning of the property and consistent with 
zoning in the vicinity of the Cheyenne and North intersection.  
 
Transportation 
 
The subject property is directly served Cheyenne Road (primary arterial) and North Street (Secondary 
Arterial). There is no existing pedestrian or multi-modal facility serving the site. 
 
The impact of traffic generated from potential mixed-use development of the subject property 
according to the allowable land uses in the PUD-MU document, will require a Traffic Impact Study to 
determine the amount / type of improvements to North Street and Cheyenne Road at the proposed 
entrances to the property. 
  
 
 
Public Utilities (Water, Wastewater, Electric) 



 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
Municipal water, sanitary sewer, and electric utilities are immediately accessible to the site and are all 
sufficient in capacity to serve general commercial and multi-family land uses.  The site is served by the 
Northeast Regional Lift Station that has sufficient capacity to serve general commercial and multi-family 
land uses at this site.  Water service to the site is of sufficient capacity to provide adequate fire 
suppression. 
 
Stormwater Management 
 
The subject property is not served by regional detention facilities and does not appear to be affected by 
flood hazard area or karst topography.  Development of the site must conform to the City’s regulations 
concerning stormwater management. 
 
Other Public Services 
 
The proposed zoning arrangement will add traffic and population to the City’s jurisdiction, which will 
impact a variety of public services in proportion to those increases. Ideally, the impact of these 
additional residents and patrons will produce economies sufficient to cover additional costs. The City’s 
development regulations will require standards to be met to ensure sufficient access to the site for 
emergency response, rescue, and fire suppression. 
 
Proposed Density 
 
The proposed density of the site is 15 dwelling units per acre. Traditional R-3 zoning allows for 14.52 
dwelling units per acre. For the entire site, the proposed PUD-MU will gain 4 additional units over 
current City density standards. Sec. 117-215 of the Nixa Code of Ordinance allows for increases in 
density with the inclusion of certain amenities or public improvements. This proposal includes joint use 
parking (1% increase in density), being within 1,500 feet of a school (1% increase in density), creation of 
new jobs (5% increase in density).  
 
Proposed Maximum Height 
 
The PUD-MU document states that the maximum building height within the development will be 60 
feet. This is above the current standard of 35 feet in the R-3 zoned district. This development is in the 
Ozark Fire Protection District. Chief Metheny of the OFPD stated that they do not have any building 
height limitations or restrictions and can properly serve this development. Chief Walles of the Nixa Fire 
Protection District only concern was with insuring that proper building codes will be meet on structures 
of that height.  
 
Supplementary Uses 
 
Section 117-214(4)(d) Permitted uses in a PUD-MU; allows for residential dwellings to be constructed 
above commercial uses provided: 

1. Separate access to dwelling units is provided. 
2. No commercial uses shall occupy the same floor as one occupied by a dwelling unit.  

 



 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 
Other Applicable Codes 
 
According to the PUD-MU document, all provisions of the Nixa City Code that would normally apply to 
land use and physical development within the Cheyenne Valley PUD will apply unless a provision of the 
development plan states otherwise. 
 
Planning and Zoning Commission 
 
A public hearing was held 7/5/2022 at the July regular meeting of the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
Staff presented the rezone. During the public hearing, residents of the area voiced their concerns of 
adding more traffic to an already congested area. They would like to see road improvements to be made 
before further development in this area. The rezone was unanimously approved by the Commission. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends approval of this application. 



COUNCIL BILL NO. 2022- 072    ORDINANCE NO.____________ 

Page 1 of 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NIXA REZONING THE REAL 1 
PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF NORTH 2 
CHEYENNE ROAD AND EAST NORTH STREET FROM A GENERAL COMMERCIAL 3 
DISTRICT AND R-3 MULTI-FAMILY DISTRICT TO A PLANNED UNIT 4 
DEVELOPMENT. 5 

_________________________ 6 
 7 
 WHEREAS an application has been filed for a zoning change of the property 8 
generally located at the southeast corner of north Cheyenne Road and east North Street; 9 
and 10 
 11 
 WHEREAS the Application requests that the City Council rezone said property 12 
from General Commercial and R-3 Multi-Family districts to a Planned Unit Development; 13 
and 14 
 15 
 WHEREAS the proposed Planned Unit Development requirements are attached 16 
hereto as “Council Bill Exhibit A”; and 17 
 18 
 WHEREAS the City’s Planned Unit Development regulations (Article VI of Chapter 19 
117 of the Nixa City Code) allow for a more flexible means of developing land within the 20 
City; and 21 
 22 
 WHEREAS the Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 23 
Application at the Commission’s July 5, 2022, meeting; and 24 
 25 

WHEREAS the Commission, after considering the Application, staff’s 26 
recommendation regarding the Application, and after holding a public hearing on the 27 
Application, issued a recommendation of approval of the Application; and 28 
 29 
 WHEREAS the City Council, now having considered the Application, staff’s 30 
recommendation regarding the Application, and after providing an opportunity for public 31 
comment on the Application, now desires to rezone the subject property and amend the 32 
City’s official zoning map to reflect City Council’s action. 33 
 34 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 35 
NIXA, AS FOLLOWS, THAT: 36 

 37 
SECTION 1: The real property generally located at the southeast corner of north 38 

Cheyenne Road and east North Street and being more specifically described within  39 
Council Bill Exhibit A” as “ALL LOT 2 IN CHEYENNE VALLEY, A SUBDIVISION IN THE 40 
CITY OF NIXA, CHRISTIAN COUNTY, MISSOURI.”, is hereby rezoned from a General 41 
Commercial and R-3 Multi-Family districts, or such other zoning districts that may apply 42 
to said real property, to a Planned Unit Development and the requirements and standards 43 
contained in “Council Bill Exhibit A,” which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by 44 
this reference, as well as the applicable provisions of the Nixa City Code shall hereafter 45 
apply to said real property.  46 



COUNCIL BILL NO. 2022- 072    ORDINANCE NO.____________ 

Page 2 of 2 

 47 
SECTION 2: The Director of Planning and Development, pursuant to section 117-48 

57 of the Nixa City Code, shall amend the City’s official zoning map, said map being 49 
established pursuant to section 117-56 of the Nixa City Code, to reflect the zoning action 50 
contemplated by this Ordinance. 51 

 52 
SECTION 3: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its final 53 

passage by the City Council and after its approval by the Mayor, subject to the provisions 54 
of section 3.11(g) of the City Charter.  55 
 56 
 57 
ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL THIS ___ DAY OF _____, 2022. 58 
         59 
        ATTEST: 60 
 61 
__________________________    ________________________ 62 
PRESIDING OFFICER     CITY CLERK  63 
   64 
   65 
APPROVED BY THE MAYOR THIS ___ DAY OF _____, 2022. 66 
 67 
        ATTEST: 68 
 69 
__________________________    ________________________ 70 
MAYOR       CITY CLERK 71 
  72 
         73 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:     74 
        75 
________________________ 76 
CITY ATTORNEY            77 



Page 1 of 3 
 

CHEYENNE VALLEY PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
 

A. SCOPE AND AUTHORITY 
1. The Cheyenne Valley Planned Unit Development (PUD) shall be applicable to 

the development of the real property described in Exhibit A.   
2. This PUD is formed according to the provisions of Chapter 117, Article VI. – 

Planned Unit Development of the Nixa City Code.  The Cheyenne Valley PUD is 
a Planned Development Mixed Use (PUD-MU) according to the provisions of 
Section 117-213. 

3. The provisions of this development plan shall regulate the land use and physical 
development of the Cheyenne Valley PUD. 

4. The provisions of the Nixa City Code that would normally apply to land use and 
physical development within the Cheyenne Valley PUD will apply unless a 
provision of this development plan states otherwise. 

5. The Nixa Planning and Development Director or their designee shall have the 
authority to render interpretations and determinations of applicability of this 
development plan.  Appeals of the decisions of the Nixa Planning and 
Development Director concerning administrative decisions made concerning this 
development plan may be presented to the Nixa Board of Adjustment according 
to the City’s currently adopted procedure for such appeals. 

B. PURPOSE AND INTENT 
1. The purpose of the Cheyenne Valley PUD is to provide for a mixture of 

residential and commercial land uses as a cohesive development in ways that 
are unique, creative, and not otherwise possible according to the current 
provisions of the Nixa City Code. 

2. The approval of this development plan by the Nixa City Council shall be made 
upon findings that the Cheyenne Valley PUD serves the public interest by 
allowing for variation and flexibility in design and development regulation that is 
particular to the Cheyenne Valley PUD. 

3. The approval of this development plan facilitates the integration of dissimilar land 
uses in a way that is achieves compatibility and provides for a sense of place. 

C. DEFINITIONS 
D. USES PERMITTED 

1. The following lists provides for land uses that are expressly permitted or 
prohibited within the Cheyenne Valley PUD. 

2. The spatial arrangement of these land uses is limited by the provisions of Section 
E of this development plan. 

3. Notwithstanding the provision of paragraph 4 of this subsection, land uses not 
expressly permitted by this development plan are prohibited within the Cheyenne 
Valley PUD. 

4. Proposed land uses that are not specifically mentioned below may still be 
permitted upon a determination of the Nixa Planning and Development Director 
that such proposed land use is substantially similar in scale and intensity to those 
uses that are expressly permitted.   

5. Permitted Uses 
(a) Residential dwellings, whether attached or detached. 
(b) Commercial land uses involving retail sales. 
(c) Commercial and institutional offices, including but not limited to 

professional office uses. 
(d) Personal services including but not limited to barbershops, beauty 

shops, tanning salons, clothing alterations, and spas. 

nwoodman
Text Box
COUNCIL BILL EXHIBIT A



Page 2 of 3 
 

(e) Government offices, including police and fire stations. 
(f) Recreational areas and parks, whether public or private. 
(g) Restaurants and other eating and drinking establishments including 

bars and taverns. 
(h) Restaurants or eating and drinking establishments with drive-in, pick-up 

window, or drive-thru facilities. 
(i) Mini Golf Courses 
(j) Medical facilities, including physician care, dental care, pharmacies, and 

counseling services. 
6. Prohibited Uses 

(a) Outdoor storage of materials or equipment associated with commercial 
or business uses. 

(b) Golf courses and driving ranges. 
(c) Convenience stores with fueling stations or gas pumps. 
(d) Banks and financial institutions with automatic teller machines and 

drive-thru facilities. 
7. Accessory Uses 

(a) Accessory uses that are incidental to an associated permitted principal 
use are permitted.  Accessory uses may not exceed the scale or 
intensity of the principal use with which they are associated. 

(b) Accessory uses include, but are not limited to: 
1. Home occupations that do not generate traffic or other 

externalities that exceed what is normal for the area. 
2. Parking of vehicles for patrons, residents, and employees. 

(c) Outdoor accommodations that do not cause a public nuisance or affect 
emergency vehicle access. 

E. ARRANGEMENT OF LAND USES 
1. The spatial arrangement of land use shall develop and be permitted in 

accordance with the layout shown in Exhibit B. 
2. The Cheyenne Valley PUD allows the location of residential and commercial 

uses within the same building so long as the residential use is located above the 
first floor so as to create a continuous non-residential façade on the first floor. 

F. DENSITY AND DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS 
1. The overall residential density within the Cheyenne Valley PUD shall not exceed 

15 dwelling units per acre. 
2. The maximum building height within the Cheyenne Valley PUD shall be 60 feet 

as measure from the lowest adjacent grade to the highest point of the building. 
3. Buildings shall not be located within 25 feet of a property line where the adjoining 

property is in a residential zoning district outside of the Cheyenne Valley PUD. 
4. Buildings shall not be located within 40 feet of the centerline of North Road. 
5. Building separations shall conform to the most recently adopted editions of the 

International Residential, Building, and Fire Codes. 
G. OPEN SPACE, LANDSCAPING, AND SCREENING 

1. A minimum of 20 percent of the land area of each lot shall be void of buildings 
and parking structures.  This required open space shall be primarily covered with 
vegetation or other natural material. 

2. Parking areas shall be screened from any adjoining public right-of-way with an 
opaque screen not less than three feet in height. 

3. Adjoining residential zoning districts shall be provided with a screen that is 
opaque to a height of at least six feet and shall also include trees that are planted 



Page 3 of 3 
 

so that, at maturity, their canopies will create intermittent visual obstruction up to 
a height of 20 feet with no more than five feet between canopies. 

4. Interior parking lot landscaping shall be provided according to the provisions of 
Section 105-28 of the Nixa City Code. 

H. OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING 
1. The off-street parking and loading requirements of the Nixa City Code shall apply 

to development of the Cheyenne Valley PUD. 
I. SUBDIVISION OF LAND 

1. The subdivision of land within the Cheyenne Valley PUD shall proceed according 
to the provisions of Chapter 115 of the Nixa City Code, except that preliminary 
plats shall be valid for a period of four years from the date of approval. 

J. PHASING OF DEVELOPMENT 
1. Development within the Cheyenne Valley PUD may be phases provided that: 

(a) All public improvements directly related to each phase are completed at 
the time of its development; 

(b) Improvements serving the Cheyenne Valley PUD as a whole and the 
adjoining area are completed in a sequence assuring full utility of the 
District as a whole; and 

(c) Future public improvements required by this development plan or other 
applicable ordinances of the City are not negatively affected. 

K. IMPACTS ON EXISTING INFRASTRUCTURE 
1. Any new intersections on an existing public street of collector or arterial 

classification shall involve a traffic impact study that prescribes public 
improvements warranted according to traffic engineering best practices. 

L. ACCESS MANAGEMENT 
1. The access locations on Cheyenne Road and North Road shown on Exhibit B 

are permitted.  Any additional proposed access to public thoroughfares shall 
conform to the City’s adopted access management standards. 

M. FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
1. This development plan shall be considered the final development plan for the 

Cheyenne Valley PUD. 
N. AMENDING THIS DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

1. This development plan may be amended by the same procedure that it was 
originally approved. 



     EXHIBIT A 

 

THAT TRACT OF LAND BEING A PART OF THE WEST ONE HALF (W1/2) OF THE 
NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW1/4) IN SECTION 17, TOWNSIP 27 NORTH, RANGE 21 WEST, IN 
CHRISTIAN COUNTY, MISSOURI BEING MORE PARTICULARY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

ALL LOT 2 IN CHEYENNE VALLEY, A SUBDIVISION IN THE CITY OF NIXA, CHRISTIAN 
COUNTY, MISSOURI. 

 

 

 

 

 



R-3 ZONING
5.658 ACRES
82 UNITS MAX

GC ZONING
2.699 ACRES

COMMUNITY

A

DETENTION
AREA

SIGN

SIGN

TRASH/RECYCLE

LAWN/
DOG PARK

FIRST FLOOR RETAIL / OFFICE

FI
RS

T 
FL

OO
R 

RE
TA

IL
 / 

OF
FI

CE

PRIVATE SPA / FIRE PIT1

2

B

POOL

TRASH/RECYCLE

3

23

17

14

21

15

88 12

12 13

14

16

6

10

18

16

68

10

8

8

8

13

A

PR
IV

AT
E 

SP
A 

/ F
IR

E 
PI

T B

c  COPYRIGHT 2021, BUXTON KUBIK DODD, INC.

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

PROPOSED MIXED USE AND MULTI-FAMILY DEVELOPMENT FOR:

SEPTEMBER 10, 2021

CHEYENNE VALLEY DEVELOPMENT
CITY OF NIXA, MISSOURI

SITE PLAN
SCALE: 1"=40'-0"

N

SITE PLAN SUMMARY
GENERAL COMMERCIAL ZONE   2.70 ACRES
RESIDENTIAL (R3) ZONE   5.66 ACRES
TOTAL ACRES FOR DEVELOPMENT   8.36 ACRES

MIXED USE - COMMERCIAL / RETAIL IN GENERAL COMMERCIAL ZONING - 2.70 ACRES
BUILDING ONE:  3,000 SQ FT

12 COVERED PARKING SPACES
4 THREE BED/TWO BATH
2 TWO BED/TWO BATH

BUILDING TWO:  3,000 SQ FT
12 COVERED PARKING SPACES
4 THREE BED/TWO BATH
2 TWO BED/TWO BATH

MULTI-FAMILY DEVELOPMENT IN RESIDENTIAL 3 (R3) - 5.66 ACRES

BUILDING A  (24 UNIT BUILDING)
  8 ONE BED/ONE BATH 
16 TWO BED/TWO BATH 
24 TOTAL UNITS PER BUILDING

BUILDING B  (12 UNIT BUILDING)
  4 TWO BED/TWO BATH
  8 THREE BED/TWO BATH
12 TOTAL UNITS PER BUILDING

BUILDING C  (24 UNIT BUILDING)
  8 ONE BED/ONE BATH 
16 TWO BED/TWO BATH 
24 TOTAL UNITS PER BUILDING

BUILDING D  (24 UNIT BUILDING)
  8 ONE BED/ONE BATH 
16 TWO BED/TWO BATH 
24 TOTAL UNITS PER BUILDING

84 TOTAL UNITS
REQUIRED PARKING (1.5 MIN. SPACES / UNIT) 126 SPACES

_____________________________________________________________________

TOTAL OF ALL BUILDINGS / ALL ZONINGS
BUILDINGS (6  BUILDINGS)

24 ONE BED/ONE BATH PER BUILDING
56 TWO BED/TWO BATH PER BUILDING
24 THREE BED/TWO BATH PER BUILDING

 REQUIRED PARKING SPACES COMMERCIAL: (6,000/300) = 20 SPACES
REQUIRED PARKING SPACES MULTI FAMILY: 1.5 PER UNIT = 156 SPACES
TOTAL REQUIRED: 176
TOTAL PROVIDED:

104 TOTAL APARTMENT UNITS
6,000 SQ FT OF COMMERCIAL LEASE SPACE
24 COVER PARKING SPACES.
TOTAL PARKING PROVIDED:

nwoodman
Text Box
Exhibit B



                                                                                     

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
Issue: First Reading Council Bill #2022-073 Amending Chapter 22, Article I 
  
Date:   07.07.2022 
 
Submitted By:  Doug Colvin 
   Assistant City Administrator – Director, Nixa Utilities and Public Works 
 
 
 
Background 
 
As requested, this Council Bill proposes a change in City Code that would allow for customers in the 
soon-to-be-acquired RDE and Tuscany Hills water systems to consent to a future annexation to 
receive Inside City water and sewer rates. 
 
Analysis 
 
Current City Code has separate utility rates for customers served inside the city limits and those 
outside city limits. As required Chapter 22 of city code, customers outside the city pay a rate that is 
1.5 X the regular rate for customers residing in town. Through discussions for the proposed purchase 
of the RDE water and Tuscany Hills water and sewer systems, council has request staff to bring this 
proposal as an option for those customers to lower their rate. This in turn also provides the city future 
opportunity for growth and additional economic development opportunities through future 
annexation of the area.  
 
Technically, this bill modifies the current code to allow those customers within the area of the two 
companies to consent to future annexation into the city to receive the reduced rate. Currently, these 
customers are not eligible for annexation because their properties are not immediately adjacent to the 
city limits. At some point in the future as the city grows, the properties with the consent in place 
would automatically be annexed as their property meets the statute for eligibility. 
  
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommendation is for City Council to adopt this Council Bill upon second reading. Staff plans 
to bring this back for that second reading at the July 25th Council meeting. Until then, we are 
available to answer any questions and address any concerns you may have. 
 



COUNCIL BILL NO. 2022-073    ORDINANCE NO.____________ 

Page 1 of 5 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NIXA AMENDING CHAPTER 1 
22, ARTICLE I, OF THE NIXA CITY CODE BY ADDING THERETO A NEW SECTION 2 
AND AMENDING THE CITY’S TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS MANUAL TO PROVIDE 3 
FOR AN EXEMPTION FROM OUTSIDE THE CITY LIMIT WATER AND SEWER 4 
RATES. 5 

_________________________ 6 
 7 
 WHEREAS with the City’s anticipated acquisition of the RDE and Tuscany Hills 8 
water and sewer systems, the City Council directed staff to prepare amendments to the 9 
City Code and Ordinances to provide an exemption increase in water and sewer rates for 10 
utility users outside the City limits for users in these systems provided that they provide 11 
an irrevocable consent to voluntary annexation to the City; and  12 
 13 
 WHEREAS staff have prepared the amendments to the City Code and the City’s 14 
Technical Specifications Manual contained herein; and 15 
 16 
 WHEREAS the City Council, after considering the amendments contained herein, 17 
desires to approve and adopt this Council Bill. 18 
 19 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 20 
NIXA, AS FOLLOWS, THAT: 21 

 22 
SECTION 1: Chapter 22, Article I, of the Nixa City Code is hereby amended by 23 

adding thereto a new Section 22-1, which said section shall read as follows:  24 
 25 
(Note: Language to be added is indicated by being underlined. Language to be removed 26 
is indicated by being stricken.) 27 
 28 
Sec. 22-1. – Municipal utility service area – Generally; Water and sewer service provided 29 
outside City limits – When; Exemption for certain utility fees upon application.  30 
 31 
(a) Area of service – City limits. The City shall operate and furnish City owned municipal 32 

utility services within the corporate limits of the City. Nothing herein shall be construed 33 
as preventing the City from purchasing, leasing, erecting, installing, or otherwise 34 
acquiring real and personal property necessary, useful, or desirable to conduct its 35 
municipal utility operations at any location, whether within or outside the corporate 36 
limits of the City. 37 

 38 
(b) Provision of water and sewer service outside the City limits – Exemption. The City 39 

may furnish municipal water and sewer service to users located outside the corporate 40 
limits of the City provided that such users were provided such utility services by either 41 
Rex Deffenderfer Enterprises, Inc., CTW Waterworks Regional Not for Profit Water 42 
Company, Inc., or Tuscany Hills Regional Sewer District, Inc. on the day of acquisition 43 
of these systems by the City.  44 

 45 



COUNCIL BILL NO. 2022-073    ORDINANCE NO.____________ 

Page 2 of 5 

(c) Water and sewer fees – Exemption to increased rate for service outside City limits. 46 
Where the City charges an increased rate for the provision of water or sewer service 47 
to properties lying outside the City limits, those properties lying within the areas 48 
described in Sec. 22-1(b) may be granted an exemption to the increased rate pursuant 49 
to the following: 50 

 51 
(1) The fee owners of the property file an application with the City requesting an 52 

exemption from the outside City limit water or sewer service rate. 53 
 54 
(2) The fee owners execute an irrevocable petition and consent to annex (“petition”) 55 

requesting voluntary annexation into the City. Such petition shall be a covenant 56 
running with the land and shall be binding on the fee owners, their successors, and 57 
assigns. Said petition shall include a provision that, the City Council may, by 58 
resolution, invoke the provisions of the petition and cause the property to be 59 
annexed into the City provided that such annexation is in compliance with Missouri 60 
law. The form of the petition and other supporting documents the City Attorney 61 
deems necessary shall be reviewed and approved by the City Attorney prior to its 62 
acceptance by the City. 63 

 64 
(3) The petition is recorded among the appropriate land records of the County in which 65 

the subject property is located. 66 
 67 
(4) If at any point the petition is found invalid or is construed as not running with the 68 

land, then the property shall no longer be exempt from the outside the City limit 69 
water or sewer rate. It is expressly stated as the intent of the City Council that the 70 
exemption from the outside the City limit rate is subject to the validity of said 71 
petition and covenant. 72 

 73 
(5) The City Administrator shall administer the provisions of this section and is 74 

authorized to establish additional rules and procedures regarding the 75 
administration of this Section. 76 

 77 
SECTION 2: Article I of the City’s adopted Technical Specifications Manual is 78 

hereby amended by repealing Article I in its entirety and adopting in lieu thereof a new 79 
Article I, which said Article shall read as follows: 80 
 81 
(Note: Language to be added is indicated by being underlined. Language to be removed 82 
is indicated by being stricken.) 83 
 84 

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 85 
ARTICLE I 86 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 87 
  88 
Section 1. City of Nixa Extension Policies.  89 
  90 
A. REQUEST FOR CITY UTILITIES INSIDE THE CITY OF NIXA PLANNING AREA.  91 



COUNCIL BILL NO. 2022-073    ORDINANCE NO.____________ 

Page 3 of 5 

  92 
1. All properties within the designated planning area must be annexed into the City 93 

Limits of Nixa to access any City utility. Reserved. 94 
  95 
2. All properties within the designated planning area will be considered for annexation 96 

upon request if state statute requirements are fulfilled. Reserved. 97 
  98 
3. All existing structures annexed into the city limits of Nixa will be required to pay the 99 

fees for wastewater as per voter approved guidelines.  100 
  101 
4. It will be the responsibility of the annexation petitioner to determine zoning 102 

requirements and fee structures.  103 
  104 
5. The petitioner must be the legal representative for the property owner and the 105 

petitioner may withdraw the annexation by a written and notarized request up to 106 
the time of the passage of the annexation ordinance.  107 

  108 
6. All building and development plans under consideration at the time of annexation 109 

must be submitted for City staff review. Staff will review the request within a 30-110 
day time frame.  111 

  112 
7. Any building and development that is underway at the time of annexation shall 113 

conform to all current City Codes.  114 
  115 
8. The City may reimburse the developer for any requested increase in lift station or 116 

line capacity that is over the size required by the State Department of Natural 117 
Resources. Lift station capacity and line sizing shall be approved by the City and 118 
its consulting engineer. Provided reimbursement is considered, the amount will be 119 
determined by computing the difference between the bids for the required versus 120 
requested improvements.  The City reserves the right to reject any or all bids.  121 

 122 
9. All street, stormwater, electric, water and wastewater extensions, whether internal 123 

or external to development shall be the sole expense of the party requesting the 124 
street and/or utility unless otherwise approved by the Board of Aldermen.  125 

 126 
10. Off-street improvements may be required by the City. City staff will review traffic 127 

and road conditions, change in classification and potential traffic hazards. Off-128 
street road improvements and upgrades will meet City Street Specifications and 129 
will be the responsibility of the developer. When necessary, City may require the 130 
developer to supply a professional traffic study to determine offsite needs.  131 

 132 
11. The City encourages the formation of neighborhood improvement districts to pay 133 

for infrastructure improvements within the planning area.  134 
  135 
B. REQUEST FOR CITY UTILITIES OUTSIDE THE CITY OF NIXA PLANNING AREA  136 
  137 



COUNCIL BILL NO. 2022-073    ORDINANCE NO.____________ 

Page 4 of 5 

1. All developments must be built to City of Nixa Development Standards.  138 
  139 
2. All developments must contractually agree to pay the fees for wastewater capacity 140 

as per voter approved guidelines.  141 
  142 
3. All developments must be approved by the Department of Natural Resources 143 

before construction begins.  144 
  145 
4. Request for utilities from outside of the Nixa Planning Area will be considered for 146 

residential purposes only. Outside utilities will only be given in instances when 147 
annexation is not possible. Prior to connection, the applicant must sign a “Consent 148 
to Annex” form, to be executed when State Statute requirements can be met.  149 

  150 
5. All street, stormwater, electric, water and wastewater extensions shall be the sole 151 

expense of the party requesting the street and/or utility unless otherwise approved 152 
by the Board of Aldermen.  153 

  154 
6. Off-street improvements may be required by the City. City staff will review traffic 155 

and road conditions, change in classification and potential traffic hazards. Off-156 
street road improvements and upgrades will meet City Street Specifications and 157 
will be the responsibility of the developer. When necessary, City may require the 158 
developer to supply a professional traffic study to determine offsite needs.  159 

  160 
7. All developments must have approval from the Christian County Planning and 161 

Zoning Authority before construction begins.  162 
  163 
8. All requests require thirty (30) day staff review before permits are granted or 164 

hearing scheduled. 165 
 166 
SECTION 3: The City Attorney, when codifying the provisions of this Ordinance, is 167 

authorized to provide for different section numbers, subsection numbers, and different 168 
internal citation references than those provided herein when such section numbers, 169 
subsection numbers, or internal citation references are in error or are contrary to the intent 170 
of this Ordinance. 171 

 172 
SECTION 4: Savings Clause. Nothing in this Ordinance shall be construed to 173 

affect any suit or proceeding now pending in any court or any rights acquired, or liability 174 
incurred nor any cause or causes of action occurred or existing, under any act or 175 
ordinance repealed hereby. 176 

 177 
SECTION 5: Severability Clause. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or 178 

phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid, such decision shall not affect 179 
the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. The Council hereby declares that 180 
it would have adopted the Ordinance and each section, subsection, sentence, clause, or 181 
phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, 182 
sentences, clauses, or phrases be declared invalid. 183 



COUNCIL BILL NO. 2022-073    ORDINANCE NO.____________ 

Page 5 of 5 

 184 
SECTION 6: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its final 185 

passage by the City Council and after its approval by the Mayor, subject to the provisions 186 
of section 3.11(g) of the City Charter.  187 

 188 
 189 

ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL THIS _____ DAY OF __________ 2022. 190 
         191 
        ATTEST: 192 
 193 
__________________________    ________________________ 194 
PRESIDING OFFICER     CITY CLERK  195 
   196 
   197 
APPROVED BY THE MAYOR THIS _____ DAY OF __________ 2022. 198 
 199 
        ATTEST: 200 
 201 
__________________________    ________________________ 202 
MAYOR       CITY CLERK 203 
  204 
         205 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:     206 
        207 
________________________ 208 
CITY ATTORNEY            209 



 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
Issue: AN RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NIXA AUTHORIZING THE CITY 

ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH LYNN’S ELECTRIC FOR OUTDOOR LIGHTING 
IMPROVEMENTS 

 
Date:   July 5, 2022 
 
Submitted By: Cindy Robbins, Assistant City Administrator 
 
 
 
Background 
For Council’s consideration is a resolution authorizing the City Administrator to execute a contract with 
Lynn’s Electric for Outdoor Lighting Improvements at 715 W. Mt. Vernon-City Hall.  This Capital 
Improvement Project was budgeted for 2022 and consists of the replacement of the existing south 
outdoor lights at City Hall with the installation of LED, color-changing outdoor lights. All cables will be 
buried during installation and the controls for the lighting will be installed inside City Hall.  This project 
will also install additional lights to enhance current lighting to reduce security issues.  Switching to LED 
lights should make the lighting brighter and will use less energy.  Also, the LED lights should enhance the 
appearance of City Hall and we can create hometown spirit with the addition of color-changing lights for 
holidays or during special events.   
 
Analysis 
Two bids were received for this project ranging from $19,490.00 to $24,888.00.  Lynn’s Electric was the 
lowest qualified bidder at $19,490.00 which was within the budgeted amount.  The City has worked with 
Lynn’s Electric on other projects and have been satisfied with the work. 
 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends approval resolution to accept the low bid and award Lynn’s Electric the contract for 
this project.   



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-071 

Page 1 of 2 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NIXA AUTHORIZING THE CITY 1 
ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH LYNN’S ELECTRIC, LLC FOR 2 
OUTDOOR LIGHTING IMPROVEMENTS TO CITY HALL. 3 

_________________________ 4 
 5 

WHEREAS City staff have solicited proposals for making improvements to the 6 
outdoor lighting at City Hall; and  7 

 8 
WHEREAS at the conclusion of the solicitation process, City staff determined that 9 

Lynn’s Electric, LLC, submitted the lowest and most qualified proposal; and  10 
 11 

WHEREAS City Council desires to authorize the execution of the Contract, 12 
attached hereto as “Resolution Exhibit A,” for the purpose described therein.  13 
 14 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 15 
NIXA, AS FOLLOWS, THAT: 16 
 17 

SECTION 1: The City Administrator, or designee, is hereby authorized to execute 18 
the Contract attached hereto, and incorporated herein by this reference, as “Resolution 19 
Exhibit A,” with Lynn’s Electric, LLC. Said Contract shall be in substantially similar form 20 
as the document attached hereto as “Resolution Exhibit A.”  21 

 22 
SECTION 2: The City Administrator and the officers of the City are hereby 23 

authorized to do all things necessary or convenient to carry out the terms and intent of 24 
this Resolution. 25 

 26 
SECTION 3: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its final 27 

passage by the City Council and after its approval by the Mayor, subject to the provisions 28 
of section 3.11(g) of the City Charter. 29 
 30 
 31 
ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL THIS 11th DAY OF JULY, 2022. 32 
         33 
        ATTEST: 34 
 35 
__________________________    ________________________ 36 
PRESIDING OFFICER     CITY CLERK  37 
   38 
 39 
APPROVED BY THE MAYOR THIS _________ DAY OF __________, 2022. 40 
 41 
        ATTEST: 42 
 43 
__________________________    ________________________ 44 
MAYOR       CITY CLERK 45 
  46 



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-071 

Page 2 of 2 

         47 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:     48 
        49 
________________________ 50 
CITY ATTORNEY            51 



nwoodman
Text Box
RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A

























RFB-028-2022/Admin

Lynn's Electric

Supplier Response

Event Information

Number: RFB-028-2022/Admin
Title: Color Changing LED Outdoor lighting for City Hall
Type: Request for Bid
Issue Date: 5/5/2022
Deadline: 5/24/2022 10:00 AM (CT)
Notes: The City of Nixa is issuing a Request for Bid for the procurement of

services to install outdoor LED color changing lights to the South side
of City Hall.

It is strongly suggested, anyone interested in this project should
schedule and onsite visit to review the project area before
submitting a response to ensure a good understanding of all
that is needed to complete this project.

The City highly encourages electronic submissions via this online
bidding system as it expedites the process and helps to alleviate
errors.

Paper bids will still be accepted.  All bid content must be a in a sealed
envelope. Bids must be delivered by the stated close date and time.
NO EMAILED OR FAXED bids will be accepted.

Public unsealing of bid responses will take place at:
City of Nixa

Page 1 of 5 pages Vendor: Lynn's Electric RFB-028-2022/Admin

RESOLUTION EXHIBIT B



715 W. Mt. Vernon St.
Nixa, MO 65714

Please submit any questions regarding this bid in writing to the
Purchasing Manager, Stephanie Ewing at sewing@nixa.com.
 
The City of Nixa reserves the right to accept or refuse any or all bids. 

Contact Information

Contact: Stephanie Ewing
Address: Purchasing

715 W. Mt. Vernon St.
Nixa, MO 65714

Phone: (417) 449-0555
Email: sewing@nixa.com

Page 2 of 5 pages Vendor: Lynn's Electric RFB-028-2022/Admin

mailto:%20sewing@nixa.com


Lynn's Electric Information

Contact: Lynn Turpin
Address: 1449 N. Owen Rd

Nixa, MO 65714
Phone: (417) 353-1359
Email: lynnturpin1965@gmail.com

By signing below, the bidder shall hereby declare understanding, agreement and certification of compliance to provide
the items and/or services, at the prices quoted, in accordance with all requirements and specifications contained herein
and the Terms and Conditions. The bidder shall further agree that the language of this RFB shall govern in the event of a
conflict with his/her bid. In addition, the bidder shall further agree that upon receipt of an authorized purchase order from
the City of Nixa or when a Contract Resolution is signed and issued by an authorized official of the City of Nixa, a binding
contract shall exist between the bidder and the City of Nixa.

S Ewing manual for L. Turpin lynnturpin1965@gmail.com
Signature Email

Submitted at 5/24/2022 10:00:00 AM

Requested Attachments

E-Verify No response

Please download the "Affidavit of Business Entity", located on the Attachment tab. Complete the document and upload
it here.

No Response Form No response

Please download the "No Response Form", located on the Attachment tab. Complete the document and upload it
here.

Other Attachment No response

If you have additional documentation you wish to provide, please upload it here. File size limitation is 250MB. If your
files are larger than the limitation, a zip file containing the documents can also be uploaded.

Bid Attributes

1 Introduction

There are attributes, including this one, associated with this proposal.  Some are notes and require no response,
but most have a required response.  **Please select each page on the right-hand side of the blue bar below (at the
bottom of this list of attributes) in order to view the next page of Bid Attributes**

2 RFB Submission Response

The City of Nixa prefers responses to be submitted online via our electronic system. Submissions may be submitted
manually. Manual submissions must be delivered to the Purchasing Department, in a sealed envelope by the date
and time stated. No fax or email submissions will be accepted. For any questions, please contact the Purchasing
Department at 417.449.0555. 

Page 3 of 5 pages Vendor: Lynn's Electric RFB-028-2022/Admin



3 Proposal Opening

Any proposal received later than the specified time shall be disqualified.

Questions pertaining to the proposal should be addressed in the Questions Tab or directly to the Purchasing
Department at 417.449.0555.

If the City of Nixa office where bids/proposals are to be submitted is closed due to inclement weather, natural
disaster, or for any other cause including if the electronic bid system is unavailable on the due date, the deadline
for submission shall be extended until the next City calendar business day, unless the bidder is otherwise notified.
The time of day for submission shall remain the same.

4 Attachments Required

Be sure to upload all required documents and forms to the "Response Attachments" Tab.

5 Section 2

PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS
The following items require an answer

6 General Terms and Conditions

Download the General Terms and Conditions, located on the "Attachments" tab.  Thoroughly review and indicate
below.

 I have downloaded, read and agree. (I have downloaded, read and agree.)

7 Scope of Work

Download the Scope of Work, located on the "Attachments" tab.  Thoroughly review and indicate below.

 I have downloaded, read and agree. (I have downloaded, read and agree.)

8 Bid Bond Requirements

Download the Bid Bond Requirements, located on the "Attachments" tab.  Thoroughly review and indicate below.

 I have downloaded, read and agree. (I have downloaded, read and agree.)

Page 4 of 5 pages Vendor: Lynn's Electric RFB-028-2022/Admin



9 Anti-Collusion Statement

By offering a submission to this Bid, the bidder certifies the bidder has not divulged, discussed, or compared the Bid
with other bidders and has not colluded with any other bidder or parties whatsoever. The bidder also certifies, and
in the case of a joint Bid, each party thereto certifies as to their own organization, that in connection with this Bid: 

Any prices and/or cost data submitted have been arrived at independently, without consultation, communication, or
agreement for the purpose of restricting competition, as to any matter relating to such prices and/or cost data, with
any other bidder or with any competitor. 

Any prices and/or cost data for this Bid have not knowingly been disclosed by the bidder and will not knowingly be
disclosed by the bidder prior to the scheduled opening directly or indirectly to any other bidder or to any
competitor. 
 
No attempt has been made or will be made by the bidder to induce any other person or firm to submit or not to
submit a Bid for the purpose of restricting competition. 

The only person or persons interested in this Bid, principal or principals are named therein and that no person
other than therein mentioned has any interest in this Bid or in the contract to be entered into. 

No person or agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure the contract upon an agreement or
understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee exempting bona fide employees or
established commercial agencies maintained by the Purchaser for the purpose of doing business.

I affirm that I am duly authorized to execute this contract; that this company, corporation, firm, partnership or
individual has not prepared this bid in collusion with any other Bidder, and that the contents of this bid as to prices,
terms or conditions of said bid have not been communicated by the undersigned nor by any employee or agent to
any other person engaged in this type of business prior to the official opening of this bid.  

 I agree. (I agree.)

1
0

No Deviations or Exceptions

I certify that there are NO deviations or exceptions from the attached specific terms, conditions, and specifications.  

No response

1
1

Deviations and Exceptions

If your company intends to deviate from the Specifications listed in the attached documents, all such deviations and
exceptions must be listed here, with complete and detailed conditions and information included.  The City will
consider any deviations or exceptions in its bid award decisions.  The City reserves the right to accept or reject any
proposals based upon any deviations indicated below.  If none, please enter N/A (Not Applicable). 

No response

Bid Lines

1 Total cost to install outdoor LED color changing lights to project onto the South wall of Nixa City Hall. 

All materials and labor included.

UOM: Total cost of Service Price: $19,490.00 Total: $19,490.00

Response Total: $19,490.00

Page 5 of 5 pages Vendor: Lynn's Electric RFB-028-2022/Admin

























Event Number RFB-028-2022/Admin Organization City of Nixa
Event Title Color Changing LED Outdoor lighting for CityWorkgroup Purchasing
Event Description The City of Nixa is issuing a Request for Bid fEvent Owner Stephanie Ewing
Event Type RFB Email sewing@nixa.com
Issue Date 5/5/2022 04:00:01 PM (CT) Phone
Close Date 5/24/2022 10:00:00 AM (CT) Fax

Responding Supplier City State Response Submitted Lines Responded Response Total
Lynn's Electric Nixa MO 5/24/2022 10:00:00 AM (CT) 1 $19,490.00
Creative Outdoor Lighting Nixa MO 5/24/2022 08:19:46 AM (CT) 1 $24,888.00

Please note: Lines Responded and Response Total only includes responses to specification.  No alternate response data is included.

RFB-028-2022/Admin - Page 1

Resolution Exhibit C



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
Issue: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL CONCERNING A NIXA BEAUTIFICATION 

FAÇADE GRANT PROGRAM APPLICATION FOR 123 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
 
Date:   July 11, 2022 
 
Submitted By: Planning and Development Department 
 
 
 
Background 
 
Section 23-1 of the Nixa Code of Ordinances establishes a Nixa Beautification Façade Grant Program. 
The purpose of the program is to encourage property owners to perform repairs and to update their 
buildings located in commercial or industrial zoned areas. The program affords a maximum of $7,500 in 
matching funds for certain eligible improvements. 
 
Eligible improvements include: 

• New awnings or the restoration of existing awnings 
• Exterior painting and / or paint removal 
• Repair and restoration of brickwork, wood, masonry, and stucco 
• Exterior lighting 
• Reusable signage 
• Repair and replacement of architectural details or materials 
• Doors 
• Rehabilitation or compatible reconstruction of storefronts 
• Removal of metal siding and exterior slipcovers (surfaces) 
• Patios, including base and railings 
• Other architectural elements 

 
Analysis 
 
The application submitted by Rose Wilson for Lady Bug Floral and Gift located at 123 South Main Street, 
describes the proposed work as “replacing store front windows and adding an awning to the front of the 
store.” 
  
Three bids for the work were submitted: 
Store front awning project 

Bidder Bid Amount 
H.B. Wall Awning $2,413 
American Awning, INC. $2,500 
Springfield Sun Control $2,990 

 
 
 



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Window Project includes replacing the two large windows on the front of the building and the 3 small 
windows along the south side of the building. 

Bidder Bid Amount 
The Window Source $4,915 
Window World $5,963 
American Glass $6,575 

 
According to the guidelines approved by the City Council for evaluating grant application, there are a 
variety of evaluation criteria to consider in rendering a recommendation: 
 

• Impact – Overall impact of the project on city beautification. 
o Is the project located in a highly visible area? 
o Will the improvements increase the economic activity and appeal? 
o Will the project eliminate incongruent design elements or elements that pose a 

potential liability to the city? 
o Does the project seek to restore the historical or architectural significance of the 

building? 
• Financial Leverage 

o Projects that leverage a greater private investment will be considered at a higher 
priority. 

• Cost / Schedule 
o Is the project feasible in cost and schedule? 

• Sustainability / Permanence 
o How permanent are the improvements and is there a maintenance plan for 

improvements? 
o Will the completed work be sustainable and potentially transferable to future owners? 

• Community Contribution 
o Is the applicant a positive presence in the community? Do they demonstrate a “good 

neighbor” policy toward other property owners? 
o Is the area around the property kept clean and free of debris on a consistent basis? 
o Does the property participate in organized promotions or other community-based 

activities? 
o Does the applicant actively promote Nixa and their own property? 

 
If awarded, the applicant must complete the required work within six months and must provide detailed 
receipts and statements of cost prior to being reimbursed by the City. The applicant is not allowed to be 
reimbursed for work done on their own or by a company they own or have financial interest in. The 
applicant is also held responsible for complying with all applicable local, state, and federal regulations 
involved in the construction process. Project total is expected to be $7,328. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends approval of this application. 



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-072 

Page 1 of 2 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NIXA AUTHORIZING THE 1 
ISSUANCE OF A BEAUTIFICATION FAÇADE GRANT FOR PROPOSED 2 
IMPROVEMENTS AT 107 SOUTH MAIN STREET.  3 

_________________________ 4 
 5 

WHEREAS section 23-1 of the Nixa City Code establishes a Nixa Beautification 6 
Façade Grant Program (“Program”) in which eligible improvements may be reimbursed 7 
up to $7,500 by the City; and 8 

 9 
WHEREAS an application has been submitted requesting funding through the 10 

Program for certain improvements generally located at 123 South Main Street; and 11 
 12 
WHEREAS after reviewing the application and approval criteria established in City 13 

Code section 23-1, the City Council desires to issue a Beautification Façade Grant to the 14 
applicant upon full compliance with the terms of this Resolution.  15 

 16 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 17 

NIXA, AS FOLLOWS, THAT: 18 
 19 

SECTION 1: City Council hereby authorizes the City Administrator, or designee, 20 
to issue a Nixa Beautification Façade Grant in the amount of $7,328 to Rose Wilson, for 21 
the proposed improvements to be made at 123 South Main Street within the City. Said 22 
improvements being described on the “Nixa Beautification Façade Grant Program” 23 
application attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as “Resolution 24 
Exhibit A.” Funding from the Program shall not be disbursed by the City until the applicant 25 
has demonstrated to the satisfaction of the City Administrator, or designee, that they have 26 
fully complied with City Code section 23-1 and City Council’s adopted review criteria for 27 
the Program.   28 

 29 
SECTION 2: The City Administrator and the officers of the City are hereby 30 

authorized to do all things necessary or convenient to carry out the terms and intent of 31 
this Resolution. 32 

 33 
SECTION 3: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its final 34 

passage by the City Council and after its approval by the Mayor, subject to the provisions 35 
of section 3.11(g) of the City Charter. 36 
 37 
 38 
ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL THIS 11th DAY OF JULY, 2022. 39 
         40 
        ATTEST: 41 
 42 
__________________________    ________________________ 43 
PRESIDING OFFICER     CITY CLERK  44 
   45 
 46 



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-072 

Page 2 of 2 

APPROVED BY THE MAYOR THIS _______ DAY OF ___________, 2022. 47 
 48 
        ATTEST: 49 
 50 
__________________________    ________________________ 51 
MAYOR       CITY CLERK 52 
  53 
       54 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:     55 
        56 
________________________ 57 
CITY ATTORNEY 58 



nwoodman
Text Box
RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A























Page 1 of 1 

Issue: 

Date:  

Submitted By: 

McCauley Park Playground Renovation 

July 8, 2022 

Matt Crouse, Director of Parks and Recreation 

Background 
During the 2022 budget planning process the parks department identified a capital improvement to 
renovate and replace the McCauley Park playground.  This renovation would allow for the complete 
replacement of all playground equipment, removal of the pre-engineered wood fiber surfacing to be 
replaced with pour-in-place rubber surfacing, and provide some shade for the playground.  These 
renovations would provide the newest innovations in inclusive play to Nixa and making the playground a 
destination for play within our community. 

Staff requested proposals from several commercial playground companies and received proposals from 
7 companies for staff consideration.  Staff then reviewed and scored each playground based on the 
design and the identified amenities requested through the proposal process to narrow down the 
proposals to a single vendor. 

Analysis 
Through the selection process staff identified PlayCore Wisconsin Inc. ada Game Time c/o Cunningham 
Recreation as the best over all proposal for a new inclusive playground to replace the playground at 
McCauley Park.  Their proposal would ensure inclusive play and a renovation to the McCauley Park 
playground that will serve our community for several years to come. 

Recommendation 
This evening staff is asking for approval of the contract with Game Time c/o Cunningham Recreation for 
the McCauley Park playground renovation.  This contract is priced at just shy of $1 million.  This is within 
budget as we are using funding that has been saved and earmarked over serval budget years for a 
project of the magnitude.  We are excited to have this opportunity to bring an amazing park upgrade to 
the Nixa Community and know that our community will be excited for this upgrade. 

Thank you for your consideration and I would be happy to answer any questions you may have. 

Respectfully, 

Matt Crouse 
Director, Parks and Recreation 



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-073 

Page 1 of 2 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NIXA AUTHORIZING THE CITY 1 
ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH PLAYCORE WISCONSIN, INC. 2 
FOR RENOVATIONS TO THE MCCAULEY PARK PLAYGROUND. 3 

_________________________ 4 
 5 

WHEREAS City staff have solicited proposals for the renovation of the playground 6 
located at McCauley Park; and  7 

 8 
WHEREAS at the conclusion of the solicitation process, City staff determined that 9 

PlayCore Wisconsin Inc. d/b/a Game Time, submitted the best overall proposal; and  10 
 11 

WHEREAS City Council desires to authorize the execution of the Contract, 12 
attached hereto as “Resolution Exhibit A,” for the purpose described therein.  13 
 14 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 15 
NIXA, AS FOLLOWS, THAT: 16 
 17 

SECTION 1: The City Administrator, or designee, is hereby authorized to execute 18 
the Contract attached hereto, and incorporated herein by this reference, as “Resolution 19 
Exhibit A,” with PlayCore Wisconsin Inc. d/b/a Game Time. Said Contract shall be in 20 
substantially similar form as the document attached hereto as “Resolution Exhibit A.”  21 

 22 
SECTION 2: The City Administrator and the officers of the City are hereby 23 

authorized to do all things necessary or convenient to carry out the terms and intent of 24 
this Resolution. 25 

 26 
SECTION 3: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its final 27 

passage by the City Council and after its approval by the Mayor, subject to the provisions 28 
of section 3.11(g) of the City Charter. 29 
 30 
 31 
ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL THIS 11th DAY OF JULY, 2022. 32 
         33 
        ATTEST: 34 
 35 
__________________________    ________________________ 36 
PRESIDING OFFICER     CITY CLERK  37 
   38 
 39 
APPROVED BY THE MAYOR THIS ________ DAY OF ___________, 2022. 40 
 41 
        ATTEST: 42 
 43 
__________________________    ________________________ 44 
MAYOR       CITY CLERK 45 
  46 



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-073 

Page 2 of 2 

         47 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:     48 
        49 
________________________ 50 
CITY ATTORNEY            51 























 
 

Exhibit A 

Scope of Work 
 
The Scope of Work for this project is to design and install a playground layout at the Parks 
and Recreation Center, located at 701 N. Taylor Way, Nixa, MO. 
 
The following specifications shall be adhered to for the project site work: 
   

• Removal of old equipment. 
• Removal of existing pre-engineered wood fiber surfacing.  The City of Nixa 

can provide a place for the old surfacing.  Contractor is responsible for 
getting the materials to that location if desired. 

• Installation of subsurface and pour in place rubber surfacing throughout 
playground. 

• Installation of new sidewalk and boarders for pour in place rubber surfacing. 
• Install all necessary drainage for pour in place rubber surfacing in the 

playground area. 
• Install all playground equipment per designs to meet manufactures specs to 

meet ASTM, CPSC, and ADA guidelines for playground safety and 
accessibility. 

• Provide all owner’s manuals, spec sheets, parts lists, etc. to Nixa Parks and 
Recreation. 

 
Work shall be monitored by City of Nixa staff. A complete and thorough inspection shall be 
performed by the City upon completion of the work. If any issues/discrepancies are noted, 
awarded vendor must correct before final payment will be issued.   
 
 
 
 
 



Nixa Parks and Recreation
Attn: Matt Crouse
701 N. Taylor Way
Nixa, MO 65714
Phone: 417-725-5486
Fax:417-725-8490
mcrouse@nixaparks.com

Ship to Zip 65714

Quantity Part # Description Unit Price Amount

1 RDU GameTime - Powerscape Modular Unit (per attached drawings) $218,820.00 $218,820.00

(1) 3903 -- Hypentic Wheel 12" 2S

(1) 3968 -- Giggle Box 20" Sensor with Back

(1) 4958 -- Hypno Wheel

(1) 4962 -- Echo Chamber

(2) 6292 -- Trillium Climber 5'-0"

(4) 16465 -- Slide Transfer (Ada)

(1) 16700 -- Ada49"Sq Punch Steel Deck

(4) 16701 -- Ada 49"Tri Punch Steel Dk

(4) 36082 -- Free Standing X-Pod Step

(4) 80167 -- Roof Ext 24" W/Rivet

(2) 80203 -- Tin Roof Gable

(1) 80206 -- Tin Roof Hex

(3) 80687 -- Handhold/Kick Plate Pkg

(1) 80729 -- 12"Stepped Platform

(1) 81665 -- Seat And Table For Two

(1) 81669 -- Hand Cycler

(1) 81688 -- Therapeutic Rings Attch

(1) 90004 -- Two Piece Hex Deck

(2) 90005 -- Two Piece Hex Deck, Ada Ramp Access

(1) 90176 -- Ada Crow'S Nest W/ Gizmo

(1) 90211 -- Rung Encl Telescope & Barrier,Above Dk

(2) 90266 -- 8' Upright, Alum

(2) 90267 -- 9' Upright, Alum

(2) 90269 -- 11' Upright, Alum

(1) 90272 -- 14' Upright, Alum

(2) 90273 -- 15' Upright, Alum

(1) 90425 -- Letters Maze Above Deck

(1) 90509 -- 5' Double Zip Slide, Std Dk

(1) 90573 -- Scramble Up (3'-6" To 5'-0")

(1) 90578 -- Swerve Slide

GameTime c/o Cunningham Recreation 
PO Box 240981 
Charlotte, NC 28224 
800.438.2780 
704.525.7356 FAX

06/13/2022
Quote # 

160064-01-02

McCauley Park Inclusive Playground Project - Revised

Page 1 of 7

nwoodman
Text Box
EXHIBIT B



Quantity Part # Description Unit Price Amount

(1) 90653 -- 3'-6"/4'-0" Zip Swerve Slide Left

(2) 90704 -- Left Curve Section Wilderslide Ii

(1) 90705 -- Right Curve Section Wilderslide Ii

(1) 90709 -- Support Wilderslide Ii

(1) 90715 -- Twist Ball Run-Gadget Pnl Above Dk

(1) 90762 -- Long Exit ( Use On 7' & 8' Slides)

(1) 90834 -- 3-in-a-Row Game Gadget Panel (crawl th

(1) 90844 -- Double With Spiral

(1) 90868 -- Splitter 6'

(1) 91038 -- 4'-0" Transfer System (3D)

(1) 91056 -- Ramp Link (3D) 2'-6" & 3'-0"

(1) 91057 -- Ramp Link (3D) 3'-6" & 4'-0"

(1) 91139 -- Entryway - Barrier

(1) 91140 -- High Point Entryway - Barrier

(1) 91144 -- High Point Entryway - Guardrail

(5) 91208 -- Climber Entryway - Guardrail

(2) 91209 -- Climber Entryway - Barrier

(1) 91210 -- Climber Entryway - 3D

(1) 91268 -- Sprouts Climber

(1) 91294 -- 7'6" - 8'0" Whirlwind

(1) 91427 -- PS Sensory Wave Transfer (2')

(1) 91472 -- 1'6"-2'0" Sensory Wave Ramp Att. II

(1) 91523 -- Ripple Pass

(1) 91539 -- 3' Roller Slide

(1) 91563 -- Flower Spinner Half Panel

(1) 91602 -- HDPE Vertical Ladder 3'0"

(1) 91621 -- Hi-Line Climbing Link 2' Rise

(1) 91667 -- Trillium Climber 4'-0" & 4'-6"

(1) 5655RP -- 8' Extension w/Cap

(6) 5656RP -- 8' Extension w/out Cap

(1) 6058RP -- Altus X2 Tower Spiral Slide

(1) 153653 -- 49" Tube Section

(1) 153844 -- 90 Deg Elbow Sec 30" Dia

(1) 153844 -- 90 Deg Elbow Sec 30" Dia

(1) 153844 -- 90 Deg Elbow Sec 30" Dia

(1) 153844 -- 90 Deg Elbow Sec 30" Dia

GameTime c/o Cunningham Recreation 
PO Box 240981 
Charlotte, NC 28224 
800.438.2780 
704.525.7356 FAX

06/13/2022
Quote # 

160064-01-02

McCauley Park Inclusive Playground Project - Revised

Page 2 of 7



Quantity Part # Description Unit Price Amount

(1) 160199 -- 90 Deg 30"W/15 Deg Flange

(1) 160202 -- 24"St Sec 15 Deg Flange

(1) 200172 -- STRAIGHT EXIT 30"DIA

(1) 203582 -- Tube Entrance Section

(1) 220028 -- FORMED FOOTBUCK 108 3/16" C/O

(1) 220120 -- SLIDE GUARD PLATE 37 13/16" C/O

(1) 220128 -- FOOTBUCK ASSY 38 1/4" C/O

(1) 6058HW -- HDW - ALTUS X2 TOWER SP SL

(1) V10792 -- FORMED FOOTBUCK 54 1/4"LG

(1) V10792 -- FORMED FOOTBUCK 54 1/4"LG

(1) V10794 -- FORMED FOOTBUCK 91 1/4"LG

(1) V10794 -- FORMED FOOTBUCK 91 1/4"LG

(1) X18007 -- FOOTBUCK SADDLE 15DEG

(1) X18009 -- FOOTBUCK SADDLE 30DEG

(1) X18020 -- 30 DEG ELBOW W/10*OFFSET

(1) X27812 -- FORMED SADDLE 19"LG

(1) 6059RP -- Modern Hex Roof

(1) 6082RP -- Altus X2 Modern Tower Base

(1) 6084RP -- Altus Modern Tower Barrier Panel

(1) 6091RP -- Altus tower Steering Wheel Panel (Mode

(1) 6106RP -- Altus Tower Modern Overlook

(8) G90262 -- 4' Upright, Galv

(1) G90266 -- 8' Upright, Galv

(1) G90267 -- 9' Upright, Galv

(6) G90268 -- 10' Upright, Galv

(5) G90269 -- 11' Upright, Galv

(10) G90272 -- 14' Upright, Galv

(2) G90273 -- 15' Upright, Galv

(1) 90260 -- 8' Leaning Wall Climber

1 RDU GameTime - Powerscape Modular Unit (per attached drawings) $54,525.00 $54,525.00

(1) 3942 -- Hourglass 12"2S

(1) 3948 -- Pachinko 20" 2S

(1) 4669 -- Up & On Silver Sensor Package

(1) 16465 -- Slide Transfer (Ada)

(3) 36082 -- Free Standing X-Pod Step

(1) 80000 -- 49" Sq Punched Steel Deck

GameTime c/o Cunningham Recreation 
PO Box 240981 
Charlotte, NC 28224 
800.438.2780 
704.525.7356 FAX

06/13/2022
Quote # 

160064-01-02

McCauley Park Inclusive Playground Project - Revised

Page 3 of 7



Quantity Part # Description Unit Price Amount

(1) 80203 -- Tin Roof Gable

(1) 80206 -- Tin Roof Hex

(1) 80687 -- Handhold/Kick Plate Pkg

(1) 90005 -- Two Piece Hex Deck, Ada Ramp Access

(1) 90182 -- Ada Crow'S Nest W/ Thunderring

(2) 90265 -- 7' Upright, Alum

(2) 90269 -- 11' Upright, Alum

(4) 90270 -- 12' Upright, Alum

(1) 90306 -- Climber Archway W/Socket & Barrier

(1) 90345 -- 3' & 3'-6" Clover Leaf Climber

(1) 90507 -- 2'-6"/3' Rumble & Roll Zip Slide

(1) 90530 -- 2'/2'-6" Little Foot Slide W/Enclosu

(1) 90592 -- Ridge Climber (Single)

(1) 91146 -- Entryway - Guardrail

(1) 91209 -- Climber Entryway - Barrier

(1) 91377 -- PS S Wave Up & On LNK (3'-3'6)

(2) 91457 -- Sensory Wave Entryway

(1) 91471 -- 1' Sensory Wave Ramp Att. II

(1) 91684 -- Modern Tranfer Attachment -PS

(2) G90262 -- 4' Upright, Galv

(4) G90269 -- 11' Upright, Galv

(1) 178749 -- Owner's Kit

2 3274 GameTime - Sensory Wave Seat $1,999.00 $3,998.00

1 6262 GameTime - Inclusive Whirl - Basic $13,999.00 $13,999.00

1 5916SP GameTime - GT Wave $67,999.00 $67,999.00

2 12584 GameTime - Ada Primetime Swing Aab, 3 1/2" Od $876.00 $1,752.00

1 18827 GameTime - Primetime Swing Add A Bay 3 1/2" X 8' $876.00 $876.00

1 12583 GameTime - Ada Primetime Swing Frame, 3 1/2" Od $1,416.00 $1,416.00

1 17247 GameTime - Adaptive Swing Safety Belt $155.00 $155.00

1 5128 GameTime - Expression Swing 3 1/2" X 8' $1,463.00 $1,463.00

1 5165 GameTime - Expression Swing w Adaptive Seat 3 1/2 $2,198.00 $2,198.00

1 8537 GameTime - Adaptive Swing W/Chain $419.00 $419.00

1 8696 GameTime - Encl Seat 3 1/2"(8696) $359.00 $359.00

4 8910 GameTime - Belt Seat 3 1/2"Od(8910) $288.00 $1,152.00

1 YA3500 Yalp - Sona Play Arch, includes Funky Floor $41,400.00 $41,400.00

1 YA8556 Yalp - Yalp Sona Carefree Package $3,500.00 $3,500.00

GameTime c/o Cunningham Recreation 
PO Box 240981 
Charlotte, NC 28224 
800.438.2780 
704.525.7356 FAX

06/13/2022
Quote # 

160064-01-02

McCauley Park Inclusive Playground Project - Revised

Page 4 of 7



Quantity Part # Description Unit Price Amount

2 QRI110 GT-Shade - GTSU121208IG 12X12X8 SQ UMB W/GLD IG $3,395.00 $6,790.00

5 T108I GT-Site - 6' DURACLAD BENCH W/BACK THERMOCOAT I $652.00 $3,260.00

3 T110 GT-Site - 32 GAL DURACLAD RECEPTACLE SM $762.00 $2,286.00

1 INSTALL MISC - Installation of Above Equipment $160,300.00 $160,300.00

1 TS-SQ32-04 RCP Shelters - 32' x 32' Steel Square Shelter with 15' Eave $57,170.00 $57,170.00

1 INSTALL MISC - Installation of Above Shelter and (2) Shades $36,800.00 $36,800.00

1 INSTALL MISC - Remove & Dispose of Existing Equipment and EWF (Leave On-Site) $38,275.00 $38,275.00

8580 PIP GT-Impax - Poured-In-Place Surfacing, Various Thickness, 50% Color/50% Black Mix $20.32 $174,345.60

8680 INSTALL MISC - Provide & Install 4" Compacted Crushed Stone $4.45 $38,626.00

8700 INSTALL MISC - Sitework/Dirtwork $1.67 $14,529.00

230 INSTALL MISC - Provide & Install Concrete Sidewalk $13.30 $3,059.00

1 INSTALL MISC - Provide & Install Concrete Sidewalk Extention Down to Grade $10,340.00 $10,340.00

490 INSTALL MISC - Provide & Install Concrete Pad under Sona Arch $13.30 $6,517.00

7650 INSTALL MISC - Site Restoration $1.42 $10,863.00

350 INSTALL MISC - Provide & Install Drainge $25.00 $8,750.00

1780 INSTALL MISC - Provide & Install Additional 6' Wide Concrete Sidewalk $13.30 $23,674.00

2 T108I GT-Site - 6' DURACLAD BENCH W/BACK THERMOCOAT I $652.00 $1,304.00

1 QRI110 GT-Shade - GTSU121208IG 12X12X8 SQ UMB W/GLD IG $3,395.00 $3,395.00

1 LOGO GT-Impax - Additional PIP Logo $3,975.00 $3,975.00

Contract: OMNIA #2017001134 Sub Total $1,018,289.60

Discount ($100,539.22)

Material Surcharge $54,652.67

Freight $25,213.90

Total $997,616.95

GameTime c/o Cunningham Recreation 
PO Box 240981 
Charlotte, NC 28224 
800.438.2780 
704.525.7356 FAX

06/13/2022
Quote # 

160064-01-02

McCauley Park Inclusive Playground Project - Revised

Page 5 of 7



GAMETIME  - TERMS & CONDITIONS:

PRICING: Due to volitile economic demand, pricing is valid for 30 days. Pricing is subject to change. Request updated pricing
when purchasing from quotes more than 30 days old.
TERMS OF SALE: For equipment & material purchases, Net 30 days from date of invoice for governmental agencies and those with
approved credit. All others, full payment for equipment, taxes and freight up front. Balance for services & materials due upon completion or
as otherwise negotiated upon credit application review. Pre-payment may be required for equipment orders totaling less than $5,000.
Payment by VISA, MasterCard, or AMEX is accepted (If you elect to pay by credit card, GameTime charges a
2.50% processing fee that is assessed on the amount of your payment.  This fee is shown as a
separate line item and included in the total amount charged to your credit card.  You have the
option to pay by check, ACH or Wire without any additional fees.). Checks should be made payable to Playcore
Wisconsin, Inc. d/b/a GameTime unless otherwise directed.
CREDIT APPLICATION: Required for all non-governmental agencies and those entities who have not purchased from GameTime within the
previous twelve calendar months.
FINANCE CHARGE: A 1.5% monthly finance charge (or maximum permitted by law) will be added to all invoices over 30 days past due.
CASH WITH ORDER DISCOUNT: Orders for GameTime equipment paid in full at time of order via check or electronic funds transfer (EFT)
are eligible for a 3% cash-with-order (CWO) discount.
ORDERS: All orders shall be in writing by purchase order, signed quotation or similar documentation. Purchase orders must be made out to
Playcore Wisconsin, Inc. d/b/a GameTime.
FREIGHT CHARGES: Shipments shall be F.O.B. destination. Freight charges prepaid and added separately.
SHIPMENT: Standard Lead time is 12-14 weeks (some items may take longer) after receipt and acceptance of purchase order, credit
application, color selections and approved drawings or submittals.
PACKAGING: All goods shall be packaged in accordance with acceptable commercial practices and marked to preclude confusion during
unloading and handling.
RECEIPT OF GOODS: Customer shall coordinate, receive, unload, inspect and provide written acceptance of shipment. Any damage to
packaging or equipment must be noted when signing delivery ticket. If damages are noted, receiver must submit a claim to Cunningham
Recreation within 15 Days. Receiver is also responsible for taking inventory of the shipment and reporting any concealed damage or
discrepancy in quantities received within 60 days of receipt.
RETURNS: Returns are only available on shipments delivered within the last 60 days. A 25% (min.) restocking fee will be deducted from
any credit due. Customer is responsible for all packaging & shipping charges. Credit is based on condition of items upon return. All returns
must be in unused and merchantable condition. GameTime reserves the right to deduct costs associated with restoring returned goods to
merchantable condition. Uprights & custom products cannot be returned.
TAXES: Sales tax is shown as a separate line item when included. A copy of your tax exemption certificate must be submitted at time of
order or taxes will be added to your invoice.

 

INSTALLATION CONDITIONS:

ACCESS: Site should be clear, level and allow for unrestricted access of trucks and machinery.
STORAGE: Customer is responsible for providing a secure location to off-load and store the equipment during the installation process.
Once equipment has delivered to the site, the owner is responsible should theft or vandalism occur unless other arrangements are made
and noted on the quotation.
FOOTER EXCAVATION: Installation pricing is based on footer excavation through earth/soil only. Customer shall be responsible for
unknown conditions such as buried utilities (public & private), tree stumps, rock, or any concealed materials or conditions that may result in
additional labor or materials cost.
UTILITIES: Installer will contact Miss Utility to locate all public utilities prior to layout and excavation of any footer holes. Owner is
responsible for locating any private utilities.
ADDITIONAL COSTS:  Pricing is based on a single mobilization for installation unless otherwise noted. Price includes ONLY what is stated
in this quotation. If additional site work or specialized equipment is required, pricing is subject to change.

 

GameTime c/o Cunningham Recreation 
PO Box 240981 
Charlotte, NC 28224 
800.438.2780 
704.525.7356 FAX

06/13/2022
Quote # 

160064-01-02

McCauley Park Inclusive Playground Project - Revised

Page 6 of 7



ACCEPTANCE OF QUOTATION:  
 
Acceptance of this proposal indicates your agreement to the terms and conditions stated herein.  
 
Accepted By (printed): _________________________________ Title: ________________________________ 
 
Telephone: __________________________________________ Fax: ________________________________ 
 
P.O. Number:_________________________________________ Date: _______________________________ 
 
Purchase Amount: $997,616.95 
 
SALES TAX EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE #:___________________________ 
 
(PLEASE PROVIDE A COPY OF CERTIFICATE) 
 
 
 
_______________________________________________ ____________________________________________ 
Salesperson's Signature                                     Customer Signature
BILLING INFORMATION: 
 
Bill to: ______________________________________________________ 
 
Contact: ____________________________________________________ 
 
Address: ____________________________________________________ 
 
Address: ____________________________________________________  
 
City, State: __________________________________ Zip: _____________ 
 
Tel: __________________________  Fax: __________________________ 
 
E-mail: ______________________________________________________  
 
 
SHIPPING INFORMATION: 
 
Ship to: _____________________________________________________ 
 
Contact: ____________________________________________________ 
 
Address: ____________________________________________________ 
 
Address: ____________________________________________________  
 
City, State: __________________________________ Zip: _____________ 
 
Tel: __________________________  Fax: __________________________ 
 
E-mail: ______________________________________________________ 

GameTime c/o Cunningham Recreation 
PO Box 240981 
Charlotte, NC 28224 
800.438.2780 
704.525.7356 FAX

06/13/2022
Quote # 

160064-01-02

McCauley Park Inclusive Playground Project - Revised

Page 7 of 7



nwoodman
Text Box
EXHIBIT C









Page 1 of 1 

Issue: 

Date:  

Submitted By: 

Fieldhouse Facility Design Contract 

July 3, 2022 

Matt Crouse, Director of Parks and Recreation 

Background 

Our community continues to grow and with that parks program participation continues to rise.  We have 
seen over a 57% increase in program participation since 2014.  This increase in participation has 
stretched our community center, ballfields, and gymnasium to their maximum potential.  We are 
reaching the point that our current facilities will no longer be able to provide the space necessary to 
accommodate the participation number expected for the future without further planning and 
exploration.  The X Center open in March of 2022 when Nixa had a population just over 12,000 people.  
Fast forward 20 years The X Center has not grown yet the community has grown to over 24,000 people.   

Analysis 

In order to properly plan for the future growth of our park system to have the ability to accommodate 
our participation growth and the needs for the community we asked council for funding to design a new 
fieldhouse type facility that could accommodate the needs and future growth.  We have three 
submittals respond to our RFQ for this project.  After careful review and scoring of all proposals Sapp 
Design was selected for the project.   

Recommendation 

Staff is recommending Sapp Design Architects for the design of this fieldhouse facility and will be able to 
provide conceptual renderings and cost estimates for a future facility for our park system.  This contract 
will not exceed $40,000 for the work to be performed by Sapp Design which is within the budgeted 
amount.   

Thank you for your consideration and I would be happy to answer any questions you may have. 

Respectfully, 

Matt Crouse 
Director, Parks and Recreation 



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-074 

Page 1 of 2 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NIXA AUTHORIZING THE CITY 1 
ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH SAPP DESIGN ASSOCIATES 2 
ARCHITECTS FOR DESIGN SERVICES FOR A MUNICIPAL FIELDHOUSE FACILITY. 3 

_________________________ 4 
 5 

WHEREAS City staff have solicited proposals for design services for a municipal 6 
fieldhouse facility; and  7 

 8 
WHEREAS at the conclusion of the solicitation process City staff determined that 9 

Sapp Design Associates Architects submitted the best overall proposal; and  10 
 11 

WHEREAS City Council desires to authorize the execution of the Contract, 12 
attached hereto as “Resolution Exhibit A,” for the purpose described therein.  13 
 14 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 15 
NIXA, AS FOLLOWS, THAT: 16 
 17 

SECTION 1: The City Administrator, or designee, is hereby authorized to execute 18 
the Contract attached hereto, and incorporated herein by this reference, as “Resolution 19 
Exhibit A,” with Sapp Design Associates Architects. Said Contract shall be in substantially 20 
similar form as the document attached hereto as “Resolution Exhibit A.”  21 

 22 
SECTION 2: The City Administrator and the officers of the City are hereby 23 

authorized to do all things necessary or convenient to carry out the terms and intent of 24 
this Resolution. 25 

 26 
SECTION 3: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its final 27 

passage by the City Council and after its approval by the Mayor, subject to the provisions 28 
of section 3.11(g) of the City Charter. 29 
 30 
 31 
ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL THIS 11th DAY OF JULY, 2022. 32 
         33 
        ATTEST: 34 
 35 
__________________________    ________________________ 36 
PRESIDING OFFICER     CITY CLERK  37 
   38 
 39 
APPROVED BY THE MAYOR THIS ________ DAY OF __________, 2022. 40 
 41 
        ATTEST: 42 
 43 
__________________________    ________________________ 44 
MAYOR       CITY CLERK 45 
  46 



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-074 

Page 2 of 2 

         47 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:     48 
        49 
________________________ 50 
CITY ATTORNEY            51 



nwoodman
Text Box
RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A

























 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Issue: Eoff Family Century Farm Park- North Parcel Design 
 

Date:   July 6, 2022 

 

Submitted By:  Matt Crouse, Director of Parks and Recreation 
 
 
 

Background 
During the 2022 budget planning process the parks department requested funding for the hiring of a 
firm to design the north parcel of the Eoff Family Century Farm Park.  The design of the north parcel of 
the Eoff Family Century Farm Park will allow the department to establish the overall layout, amenities to 
be offered, provide cost estimates, and renderings for the park.  This will give our community a better 
idea of what the park will become once developed.  The south parcel will not be a part of the design; 
however, we will look at that property in some detail to ensure we align parking and access to ensure 
the two spaces align as both are developed.   
 

Analysis 
This RFQ received two responses for consideration.  After scoring the responses SWT Design scored the 
highest out of those responses.  SWT Design has done work for the park department as they completed 
the park master plan and will have a firm understanding as to our city, parks, and direction as a part of 
that project they will be able to bring forward to this project. 

 

Recommendation 
Staff is recommending the acceptance of this contract to begin working with SWT Design to design the 
north parcel of the Eoff Family Century Farm Park.  This contract has a not to exceed clause of $70,000 
which is within the budget for this project. 
 
Thank you for your consideration and I would be happy to answer any questions you may have. 
 
 
Respectfully, 
 
Matt Crouse 
Director, Parks and Recreation 



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-075 

Page 1 of 2 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NIXA AUTHORIZING THE CITY 1 
ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH SWT DESIGN FOR DESIGN 2 
SERVICES RELATED TO THE EOFF FAMILY CENTURY FARM PARK. 3 

_________________________ 4 
 5 

WHEREAS City staff have solicited proposals for design services related to the 6 
Eoff Family Century Farm Park; and  7 

 8 
WHEREAS at the conclusion of the solicitation process City staff determined that 9 

SWT Design submitted the best overall proposal; and  10 
 11 

WHEREAS City Council desires to authorize the execution of the Contract, 12 
attached hereto as “Resolution Exhibit A,” for the purpose described therein.  13 
 14 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 15 
NIXA, AS FOLLOWS, THAT: 16 
 17 

SECTION 1: The City Administrator, or designee, is hereby authorized to execute 18 
the Contract attached hereto, and incorporated herein by this reference, as “Resolution 19 
Exhibit A,” with SWT Design. Said Contract shall be in substantially similar form as the 20 
document attached hereto as “Resolution Exhibit A.”  21 

 22 
SECTION 2: The City Administrator and the officers of the City are hereby 23 

authorized to do all things necessary or convenient to carry out the terms and intent of 24 
this Resolution. 25 

 26 
SECTION 3: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its final 27 

passage by the City Council and after its approval by the Mayor, subject to the provisions 28 
of section 3.11(g) of the City Charter. 29 
 30 
 31 
ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL THIS 11th DAY OF JULY, 2022. 32 
         33 
        ATTEST: 34 
 35 
__________________________    ________________________ 36 
PRESIDING OFFICER     CITY CLERK  37 
   38 
 39 
APPROVED BY THE MAYOR THIS _______ DAY OF __________, 2022. 40 
 41 
        ATTEST: 42 
 43 
__________________________    ________________________ 44 
MAYOR       CITY CLERK 45 
  46 



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-075 

Page 2 of 2 

         47 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:     48 
        49 
________________________ 50 
CITY ATTORNEY            51 



 

 

Page 1 of 10 
 

 

 
CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING AND DESIGN SERVICES 

 
THIS SERVICES CONTRACT (“Contract”) is made and entered into upon its execution by the 

parties identified above. 
 
 WHEREAS the City, after conducting a Request for Qualifications solicitation process, 
referenced as RFQ-023-2022/Parks desires to engage Contractor to perform certain services; and 
 

WHEREAS the City desires to engage Contractor to perform such services under the terms and 
conditions of this Contract; and 

 
WHEREAS contractor desires to perform such services under the terms and conditions of this 

Contract. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, for the considerations herein expressed, it is mutually agreed by and 
between the City and the Contractor as follows: 
 
1. Services. The City agrees to engage the services of the Contractor and the Contractor agrees 
to perform said Services in accordance with the standard of care, skill, and expertise ordinarily used by 
other members of Contractor’s profession in performing similar services. The Services are described 
in Exhibit A, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. Contractor shall furnish 
all supervision, labor, tools, equipment, materials, and supplies necessary to perform the Services at 
Contractor's own expense in accordance with the contract documents, any applicable City ordinances, 
and any applicable state or federal laws. 
 
2. Addition to Services. The City may add to the Contractor’s services or delete therefrom 
services, provided that the total cost of such work does not exceed the total cost authorized herein. The 
Contractor shall undertake such changed activities only upon the written direction of the City. All such 
directives and changes shall be in written form and shall be accepted and countersigned by the 
Contractor. 

 
3. Exchange of Data. All information, data, and reports in the City’s possession and necessary for 
the carrying out of the Services, shall be furnished to the Contractor without charge, and the parties 

ROUTE ORDER: Contractor signs, route to City Clerk, City Admin signs two originals, Clerk adds date, City Attorney signs, return one 
original by mail to Organization and City Clerk retains one original. 

EFFECTIVE DATE: TERMINATION DATE:  CONTRACT NUMBER: 

(X)  NEW CONTRACT        ( ) ADDENDUM NO. __ 

CITY CONTRACTOR 

 
Name: City of Nixa, Missouri  
Address: 715 W. Mt. Vernon St., PO Box 395 
Nixa, MO 65714 
Phone: 417.725.3785 
Attn: Matt Crouse Dept: Parks 
Email: mcrouse@nixa.com  

 
Name: SWT Design 
Address: 7722 Big Bend Blvd. 
St. Louis, MO 63119 
Phone: 314-644-5700 
Attn: Jay Wohlschlaeger 
Email:jayw@swtdesign.com 
 

nwoodman
Text Box
RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A



 

 

Page 2 of 10 
 

 

shall cooperate with each other in every possible way in the carrying out of the Services. 
 

4. Personnel. The Contractor represents that Contractor shall secure at Contractor’s own 
expense; all personnel required to perform the services called for under this Contract by Contractor. 
Such personnel shall not be considered employees of the City. All of the services required hereunder 
shall be performed by the Contractor or under Contractor’s direct supervision and all personnel 
engaged in the work shall be fully qualified and shall be authorized under state and local law to perform 
such services. None of the work or services covered by this contract shall be subcontracted without the 
prior written approval of the City. 
 
5. Term. This Contract shall terminate upon completion of the Eoff Family Century Farm Park-
North parcel design project.  
 
6. Renewals. The term of this Contract may be extended three times by the City, at the City’s sole 
option, beyond the original term, for a fixed term of no more than one year per extension, provided that: 
 

a. The terms of the extension are in writing; 
 
b. The extension is executed by the Contractor and City; and 
 
c. City funds are appropriated for such purpose. 

 
7. Payment.  
 

a. Conditioned on acceptable performance. Provided that Contractor performs the 
services in the manner set forth herein, the City shall pay the Contractor in accordance with the 
rate set forth in Exhibit B, which shall constitute full and complete compensation for the 
Contractor's work provided. No partial payment to the Contractor shall operate as approval of 
acceptance of work done. Such compensation shall be paid in progress payments, as 
established by the City, subject to receipt of a requisition for payment and a statement of work 
provided by the Contractor and Contract by both the City and the Contractor that the Contractor 
has fully performed the work to be paid for in such progress payments in conformance with the 
contract. 
 
b. Total compensation not to exceed. It is expressly understood that in no event shall the 
total compensation or reimbursement to be paid to the Contractor under the terms of this 
Contract exceed the sum of $70,000.00 

 
8. Termination. 
 

a. Termination for breach. Failure of Contractor to fulfill Contractor’s obligations under this 
Contract in a timely and satisfactory manner in accordance with the terms of this Contract shall 
constitute a breach of the Contract, and the City shall thereupon have the right to immediately 
terminate the Contract. The City shall give written notice of termination to the Contractor. In the 
event of any litigation arising from breach of this Contract, the City shall be entitled to recover 
from the Contractor all reasonable costs incurred for such litigation, including staff time, court 
costs, attorney fees, and all other related expenses incurred in such litigation. 



 

 

Page 3 of 10 
 

 

b. Termination for Convenience. Either party shall have the right at any time upon 90 days 
written notice to the other to terminate and cancel this Contract, without cause, for convenience. 
In such event final payment to the Contractor shall be limited to services provided by the 
Contractor as of the effective date of said termination. 
 
c. Non-appropriation. This Contract shall be terminated upon the failure of the City Council 
of City to appropriate funds for this Contract in any term of said Contract.  
 
d. Documents, reports, and data to be provided to City. In the event of termination, all 
finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, surveys, drawings, maps, models, photographs, 
and reports or other materials prepared by the Contractor related to this Contract shall, at the 
option of the City, become the property of the City, and the Contractor shall be entitled to receive 
just and equitable compensation for any satisfactory work completed on such documents and 
other materials; provided, that the Contractor shall not be relieved of liability to the City for any 
damages sustained by the City by virtue of any breach of the Contract by the Contractor. 

 
9. City's Right to Proceed. In the event this Contract is terminated, the City may take over the 
work and prosecute the same to completion, by contract or otherwise, and Contractor and its sureties 
shall be liable to the City for any costs over the amount of this Contract thereby occasioned by the City. 
In any such case, the City may take possession of, and utilize in completing the work, such materials, 
appliances and structures as may be on the work site and are necessary for completion of the work. 
The foregoing provisions are in addition to, and not in limitation of, the rights of the City under any other 
provisions of the contract, city ordinances, and state and federal laws. 
 
10. Confidentiality. Any reports, data, or similar information given to, prepared or assembled by the 
Contractor under this Contract shall be considered the property of the City and shall not be made 
available to any individual or organization by the Contractor without prior written approval of the City.  
 
11. Conflict of Interest. Contractor certifies that no member or officer of its firm or organization is 
an officer or employee of the City of Nixa, Missouri, or any of its boards or agencies, and further that 
no officer or employee of the City has any financial interest in this contract which would violate any 
applicable federal regulations or the provisions of RSMo Section 105.450 et seq.  
 
12. Assignment. The Contractor shall not assign any interest in this Contract and shall not transfer 
any interest in the same (whether by assignment or novation), without prior written consent of the City, 
provided, however, that claims for money due or to become due to the Contractor from the City under 
this Contract may be assigned to a bank, trust company, or other financial institution without such 
approval. Notice of such assignment or transfer shall be furnished in writing promptly to the City and 
the bond surety. Any such assignment is expressly subject to all rights and remedies of the City under 
this Contract, including the right to change or delete activities from the Contract or to terminate the 
same as provided herein, and no such assignment shall require the City to give any notice to any such 
assignee of any actions which the City may take under this Contract. 
 
13. Nondiscrimination. The Contractor agrees in the performance of this contract not to 
discriminate on the ground or because of race, creed, color, national origin or ancestry, sex, religion, 
handicap, age, status as a protected veteran or status as a qualified individual with a disability, or 
political opinion or affiliation, against any employee of Contractor or applicant for employment and shall 



 

 

Page 4 of 10 
 

 

include a similar provision in all subcontracts let or awarded hereunder. The parties hereby incorporate 
the requirements of 41 C.F.R. §§ 60-1.4(a)(7), 29 C.F.R. Part 471, Appendix A to Subpart A, 41 C.F.R. 
§ 60-300.5(a) and 41 C.F.R. § 60-741.5(a), if applicable. 
 

a. This Contractor and subcontractor shall abide by the requirements of 41 C.F.R. § 60-
300.5(a). This regulation prohibits discriminations against qualified protected veterans and 
requires affirmative action by covered prime contractors and subcontractors to employ and 
advance in employment qualified protected veterans. 
 
b. This Contractor and subcontractor shall abide by the requirements of 41 C.F.R. § 60-
741.5(a). This regulation prohibits discrimination against qualified individuals on the basis of 
disability and requires affirmative action by covered prime Contractors and subcontractors to 
employ and advance in employment qualified individuals with disabilities. 

 
14. Occupational License. The Contractor shall obtain and maintain an occupational license or 
business registration with the City of Nixa, Missouri, if required by city code and any required state or 
federal requirement. The cost for this occupational license shall be borne by the Contractor. No contract 
will be executed by the City until this occupational license has been obtained. 
 
15. Insurance Requirements. Without limiting any of the other obligations or liabilities of the 
Contractor, the Contractor shall secure and maintain at its own cost and expense, throughout the 
duration of this Contract and until the work is completed and accepted by the City, insurance of such 
types and in such amounts as may be necessary to protect it and the interests of the City against all 
hazards or risks of loss as hereunder specified or which may arise out of the performance of this 
Contract. The form and limits of such insurance, together with the underwriter thereof in each case, are 
subject to approval by the City. Regardless of such approval, it shall be the responsibility of the 
Contractor to maintain adequate insurance coverage at all times during the term of this Contract. Failure 
of the Contractor to maintain coverage shall not relieve it of any contractual responsibility or obligation 
or liability in general or under this Contract.   
 
The certificates of insurance, including evidence of the required endorsements hereunder or the 
policies, shall be filed with the City within 10 days after the date of the receipt of Notice of Award of the 
Contract to the Contractor and prior to the start of work. All insurance policies shall require that the 
insurance company in question provide 30 days written notice prior to modification or cancellation of 
such insurance. Such notices shall be mailed, certified mail, return receipt requested, to the address 
for the City listed at the top of this Contract.  
 
As of January 1, 2022, the minimum coverage for the insurance referred to herein shall be as set out 
below: 
 

a. Workers' Compensation – Statutory coverage per RSMo. 287.010 et seq. 
Employer’s Liability – $1,000,000.00 

 
b. Commercial General Liability Insurance, including coverage for Premises, Operations, 
Products and Completed Operations, Contractual Liability, Broad Form Property Damage, 
Independent Contractors, Explosion, Collapse, and Underground Property Damage and blasting 
if blasting is required. Such coverage shall apply to bodily injury and property damage on an 



Page 5 of 10 

“Occurrence Form Basis” with limits of at least Three Million Sixty-Five Thousand Nine Hundred 
Fifty-Two and no/100 Dollars ($3,065,952.00) for all claims arising out of a single accident or 
occurrence and at least Four Hundred Fifty-None Thousand Eight Hundred Ninety-Three and 
no/100 Dollars ($459,893.00) with respect to injuries and/or death of any one person in a single 
occurrence and an amount not less than at least $1,000,000 for all claims to property arising out 
of a single occurrence and at least $100,000 to any one owner with respect to damages to 
property. Contractor agrees that the proceeds of such insurance policy shall first be used to pay 
any award, damages, costs, and/or attorneys’ fees incurred by or assessed against City, its 
employees, officers and agents, before payment of any award, damages, costs or attorney’s 
fees of Contractor, its employees, officers or agents. Contractor agrees to cause its insurer to 
name City as an additional insured on such insurance policy, including the City as an additional 
insured for coverage under its products-completed operations hazard, and said policy shall be 
primary and noncontributory. 

c. Automobile Liability Insurance covering bodily injury and property damage for owned, 
non-owned and hired vehicles, with limits of at Three Million and no/100 Dollars 
($3,000,000.00) for all claims arising out of a single accident or occurrence and at least Four 
Hundred Fifty-None Thousand Eight Hundred Ninety-Three and no/100 Dollars ($459,893.00) 
with respect to injuries and/or death of any one person in a single accident or occurrence.

d. Owner’s and Contractor’s Protective Liability Insurance. To protect the City, its 
agents, servants, and employees from claims which may arise from the performance of this 
Contract, with limits of at least Three Million Sixty-Five Thousand Nine Hundred Fifty-Two and 
no/100 Dollars ($3,065,952.00) for all claims arising out of a single accident or occurrence and 
at least Four Hundred Fifty-None Thousand Eight Hundred Ninety-Three and no/100 Dollars 
($459,893.00) with respect to injuries and/or death of any one person in a single accident or 
occurrence. The Owner’s and Contractor’s Protective Liability Insurance must:

1. Be a separate policy with the named insured being: The City of Nixa, Missouri; and

2. Be with the same insurance company with which the Contractor carries its Commercial 
General Liability Insurance and Automotive Liability Insurance; and

3. Contain an endorsement that disclaims coverage for any claim barred by the doctrines 
of sovereign immunity or official immunity, except attorney’s fees and other litigation 
costs incurred in defending a claim. Nothing contained in this policy (or this 
endorsement thereto) shall constitute any waiver of whatever kind of these defenses 
or sovereign immunity or official immunity for any monetary amount whatsoever.

e. Subcontracts. In case any or all of the performance of this Contract is sublet, the 
Contractor shall require the subcontractor to procure and maintain all insurance required in 
subparagraphs (a), (b) and (c) hereof and in like amounts. Contractor shall require any and all 
subcontractors with whom it enters into a contract to perform work on this project to protect the 
City through insurance against applicable hazards or risks and shall, upon request of the City, 
provide evidence of such insurance.



 

 

Page 6 of 10 
 

 

f. Notice. The Contractor and/or subcontractor shall furnish to the City prior to beginning 
the work contemplated by this Contract, the policy as specified in subparagraph (d), and 
satisfactory proof of bearing all the insurance required by this Contract, with the provision that 
policies shall not be canceled, modified or non-renewed without 30 days written notice to the 
City. 
 
g. Legislative or Judicial Changes. In the event the scope or extent of the City’s tort liability 
as a governmental entity as described in Section 537.600 through 537.650 RSMo is broadened 
or increased during the term of this Contract by legislative or judicial action, the City may 
require Contractor, upon 10 days written notice, to execute a contract addendum whereby the 
Contractor agrees to provide, at a price not exceeding Contractor’s actual increased premium 
cost, additional liability insurance coverage as the City may require to protect the City from 
increased tort liability exposure as the result of such legislative or judicial action. Any such 
additional insurance coverage shall be evidenced by an appropriate certificate of insurance 
and shall take effect within the time set forth in the addendum. 

 
16. Contractor’s responsibility for subcontractors. The Contractor shall be fully responsible to 
the City for the acts and omissions of its subcontractors, and of persons either directly or indirectly 
employed by them, as Contractor is for the acts and omissions of persons it directly employs. Contractor 
shall cause appropriate provisions to be inserted in all subcontracts relating to this Contract, to bind all 
subcontractors to Contractor by all the terms herein set forth, and insofar as applicable to the work of 
subcontractors and to give Contractor the same power regarding termination of any subcontract as the 
City may exercise over Contractor under any provisions of this contract. Nothing contained in this 
contract shall create any contractual relation between the subcontractor and the City. 
 
17. General Independent Contractor Clause. This Contract does not create an 
employee/employer relationship between the parties. It is the parties' intention that the Contractor shall 
be an independent contractor and not the City's employee for all purposes, including, but not limited to, 
the application of the Fair Labor Standards Act, minimum wage and overtime payments, Federal 
Insurance Contribution Act, the Social Security Act, the Federal Unemployment Tax Act, the provisions 
of the Internal Revenue Code, Missouri revenue and taxation laws, Missouri workers' compensation, 
and unemployment insurance laws. The Contractor shall retain sole and absolute discretion as to the 
judgment and manner and means of carrying out the Contractor's activities and responsibilities 
hereunder. The Contractor agrees that it is a separate and independent enterprise from the public 
employer, that it has a full opportunity to find other business, that it has made its own investment in its 
business, and that it will utilize a high level of skill necessary to perform the work. This Contract shall 
not be construed as creating any joint employment relationship between the Contractor and the City, 
and the City shall not be liable for any obligation incurred by the Contractor, including but not limited to 
unpaid minimum wages and/or overtime premiums. 
 
18. Liability and Indemnity.  
 

a. In no event shall the City be liable to the Contractor for special, indirect, or consequential 
damages, except those caused by the City’s gross negligence or willful or wanton misconduct 
arising out of or in any way connected with a breach of this contract. The maximum liability of 
the City shall be limited to the amount of money to be paid or received by the Contractor under 
this contract. 



 

 

Page 7 of 10 
 

 

 
b. The Contractor shall defend, indemnify and save harmless the City, its elected or 
appointed officials, agents and employees from and against any and all liability, suits, damages, 
costs (including attorney fees), losses, outlays and expenses from claims in any manner caused 
by, or allegedly caused by, or arising out of, or connected with, this contract, or the work or any 
subcontract thereunder (the Contractor hereby assuming full responsibility for relations with 
subcontractors), including, but not limited to, claims for personal injuries, death, property 
damage, or for damages from the award of this contract to Contractor, notwithstanding any 
possible negligence, whether sole or concurrent, on the part of the City, its officials, agents and 
employees. 
 
c. The Contractor shall indemnify and hold the City harmless from all wages or overtime 
compensation due any employees in rendering services pursuant to this Contract or any 
subcontract, including payment of reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs in the defense of any 
claim made under the Fair Labor Standards Act, the Missouri Prevailing Wage Law or any other 
federal or state law. 
 
d. The indemnification obligations of Contractor hereunder shall not be limited by any 
limitations as to the amount or type of damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for the 
Contractor, under any federal or state law, to any person asserting the claim against City, its 
elected or appointed officials, agents, and employees, for which indemnification is sought. 
 
e. The indemnification obligations herein shall not negate, abridge or reduce in any way any 
additional indemnification rights of the City, its elected or appointed officials, agents and 
employees, which are otherwise available under statute, or in law or equity. 
 
f. Contractor affirms that it has had the opportunity to recover the costs of the liability 
insurance required in this Contract in its contract price. Contractor’s obligation under this 
Contract to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless any person from that person’s own negligence 
or wrongdoing is limited to the coverage and limits of the applicable insurance required of the 
Contractor under this Contract. 
 
g. The Contractor shall indemnify and hold the City harmless for any penalties, fines, fees 
or costs, including costs of defense, which are charged or assessed by any Federal, state or 
local agency including, but not limited to, Environmental Protection Agency or Department of 
Natural Resources. 

 
19. Contract Documents. The entire Contract of the parties shall consist of the following 
documents: 
 

a. This Contract 
b. Exhibit A- Scope of Work 
c. Exhibit B- Fee Schedule 

 
The above listed documents are attached hereto and incorporated by their reference herein as though 
fully set forth herein. No modification, amendment, or waiver of any of the provisions of this Contract 
shall be effective unless in writing specifically referring hereto and signed by both parties. This Contract 



 

 

Page 8 of 10 
 

 

shall also include any Exhibits incorporated by reference in the above-described documents. When any 
provisions of the Contract Documents conflict, the provisions contained in the Contract shall control 
followed by Exhibit A, then Exhibit B. 

 
20. Nonresident/Foreign Contractors. The Contractor shall procure and maintain during the life of 
this Contract: 
 

a. If the Contractor is a foreign corporation, a certificate of authority to transact business in 
the State of Missouri from the Secretary of State, unless exempt pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 351.570 RSMo. 
 
b. A certificate from the Missouri Director of Revenue evidencing compliance with the 
transient employer financial assurance law, unless exempt pursuant to the provisions of Section 
285.230 RSMo. 
 

21. Notices. All notices required or permitted hereinunder and required to be in writing may be given 
by Electronic Mail or by first class mail addressed to City and Contractor at the addresses shown above. 
The date of delivery of any notice given by mail shall be the date falling on the second full day after the 
day of its mailing. The date of delivery of notice by Electronic Mail transmission shall be deemed to be 
the date transmission occurs, except where the transmission is not completed by 5:00 p.m. on a regular 
business day at the terminal of the receiving party, in which case the date of delivery shall be deemed 
to fall on the next regular business day for the receiving party. 
 
22. Right to Audit. Contractor agrees to furnish sufficient supporting details as may be required by 
the City to support any charges or invoices submitted to the City for payment under this Contract. 
Contractor shall make available for the City’s inspection all records covering or relating to charges 
submitted to the City for payment. Contractor shall make appropriate adjustments in the event that 
discrepancies are found. The City shall have the right to audit the Contractor’s records pertaining to the 
Services for a period of three (3) years after final payment. 
 
23. Compliance with Laws. Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable federal, state and local 
laws or rules and regulations applicable to the provision of services and products hereunder. Contractor 
affirmatively states that payment of all local, state, and federal taxes and assessments owed by 
Contractor is current. 
 
24. City Benefits. The Contractor shall not be entitled to any of the benefits established for the 
employees of the City nor be covered by the Worker's Compensation Program of the City. 
 
25. Jurisdiction. This Contract and every question arising hereunder shall be construed or 
determined according to the laws of the State of Missouri. Should any part of this Contract be litigated, 
venue shall be proper only in the Circuit Court of Christian County, Missouri.  
 
26. Affidavit for Contracts Over $5,000.00. That pursuant to Missouri Revised Statute Sections 
285.525 through 285.550, if this contract exceeds the amount of $5,000.00 and Contractor is 
associated with a business entity, Contractor shall provide an acceptable notarized affidavit stating that 
the associated business entity is enrolled in and participates in a federal work authorization program 
with respect to the employees working in connection with the contracted services, and that said 



 

 

Page 9 of 10 
 

 

business entity does not knowingly employ any person who is an unauthorized alien in connection with 
the contracted services. Additionally, Contractor must provide documentation for said business entity 
evidencing current enrollment in a federal work authorization program. 
 
27. Affidavit for Compliance with Anti-Discrimination against Israel Act. Pursuant to Section 
34.600 RSMo, if this Contract exceeds the amount of $100,000 for Contractors with ten or more 
employees, Contractor shall provide an acceptable notarized affidavit stating that the associated 
business is not currently engaged in and shall not for the duration of the contract, engage in a boycott 
of goods or services from the State of Israel; is not currently engaged in and shall not, for the duration 
of the contract, engage in a boycott of goods or services from companies doing business in or with 
Israel or authorized by, licensed by, or organized under the laws of the State of Israel; or is not currently 
engaged in and shall not for the duration of this contract, engage in a boycott of goods or services from 
persons or entities doing business in the state of Israel.  
 
 

(The rest of the page is intentionally left blank) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





t  3 14.644.5700 |  f  314.644.6378 |  7722 B ig  B end B lvd .  |  S t .  Loui s ,  M O 63119 Page  8  O F  15  

SCOPE OF WORK  

Below is a proposed project scope from the SWT Design Team for completing the Eoff Family Century Farm Park 
North Design Services as defined in the Request for Qualifications.  This scope of work includes anticipated 
meetings and engagement events.    

OVERVIEW 

The scope of work identified below outlines work to be performed by SWT Team. Extents of work will include 
programming/conceptual design and connectivity for both north and south park properties. Full master planning, 
design documents, bidding, and construction phase services will focus on the 52-acre north parcel.  

We propose separating the scope of work into two tasks: 

• The first task will focus on the development of a refined master plan for the north parcel. The deliverables
for the north parcel will include a rendered graphic plan, concept images, costing, and priorities/budgets
for phased implementation.

• The second task will focus on the design documents, permitting, bidding, and construction phase services
for a selected implementation phase(s) of the master plan.

Services to be performed by SWT Team in each task include: 

TASK I – NORTH PROPERTY MASTER PLANNING 

PHASE 1: SITE ANALYSIS AND PROGRAM CONFIRMATION (EIGHT WEEKS) 

Phase 1 will focus on developing a working understanding of the site and factors that may impact the final 
design, approval, and/or implementation of the park master plan, and confirming the program for the north 
property development. This phase will establish the foundation for the master plan process, working 
understanding of the entire +/-105-acre park properties, and initiate engagement with the core Parks and 
Recreation Department planning team, hereinafter referred to as Client.  

Key meetings in this phase include project kick-off workshop and site walk, Client Meetings 01 and 02, and 
utility/agency introductions.   

A. Project Kick-Off Workshop (Client Meeting 01)

• A1 - Kickoff Meeting discussion items to include:

 Introduction of team members from SWT Team and City of Nixa.
 Identify decision making process and team member roles and responsibilities.
 Review of Client expectations for the final master plan deliverables and what

deliverables will be of the most value to the Client.
 Discussion of goals for the identity of this park and desired amenities.
 Discussion of surrounding context, conditions, and plans that could impact the park.
 Discussion of budget expectations for development of the park.
 Confirm Community Engagement plan with Client.
 Coordinate client provided base information and documentation.
 Establish project schedule with key meetings and milestones.

Exhibit A



t  3 14.644.5700 |  f  314.644.6378 |  7722 B ig  B end B lvd .  |  S t .  Loui s ,  M O 63119   Page  9  O F  15  

 

• A2 - Property Walk to include: 

 Inventory and evaluation of existing property conditions. 
 Tour existing house and barn to evaluate existing condition.  
 Review items discussed in kickoff meeting. 
 Discuss physical site opportunities and challenges. 
 Review connectivity between north and south parcels. 

B. Base Mapping (alternative to site topo and boundary survey) – North and South  

• SWT Team, with assistance from City of Nixa, will prepare a primary base map to be used as a 
foundation of all inventory and analysis mapping and design graphics in future phases of this 
master plan process. This map will be prepared based on the following documentation: 

 Available aerial photography  
 Available USGS contours (or other source)  
 Surrounding property information 
 Roadway and right-of-way mapping  

• SWT Team will share a preliminary version of the base map with Client to confirm extents and 
graphic representation is sufficient for use in this master planning effort.  

C. Desktop Infrastructure and Access Assessment – North and South  

• SWT Team will research existing infrastructure (on-site and off-site) to identify the extent of 
services and impact on future park development. These elements are anticipated to include: 

 Electrical services and easements / Existing overheard powerlines and easement. 
 Water service and easements. 
 Storm and Sanitary Sewer service and easements. 
 Natural Gas service and easements. 
 General easements and development restrictions. 
 Off-site factors and impacts on park property. 

• SWT Team will prepare a preliminary/desktop traffic study of Highway AA relevant to site access 
for the north and south properties. (Full traffic study not in this scope of work) 

• SWT Team will initiate review agency engagement and preliminary discussions to identify points 
of contact, critical path efforts, and anticipated timelines.  

D. Environmental Assessment – North  

• SWT Team will evaluate existing conditions and potential impact of development on these 
conditions. Areas of review include, but are not limited to: 

 Slope / Drainage 
 Vegetation / Tree Canopy 
 Soils (from USDA/USGS Soils Mapping) 
 James River – bank conditions and water quality (water quality testing not in scope) 

• If further studies are determined necessary, they will be performed as a component of design 
implementation or as an additional service to this scoped of work.  

E. Architectural Structures Assessment – North  

• SWT Team will document existing conditions of farmhouse and barn 

• SWT Team will evaluate conditions and feasibility for redevelopment 
 Visual Structural Conditions Assessment (no structural engineer review) 
 ADA accessibility assessment 



t  3 14.644.5700 |  f  314.644.6378 |  7722 B ig  B end B lvd .  |  S t .  Loui s ,  M O 63119   Page  10  O F  1 5  

 

• SWT Team to prepare assessment findings summarizing existing conditions and anticipated 
requirements to renovate and repurpose the structures. 

F. Analysis and Opportunities Documentation – North (includes South utilities and roadway access) 

• SWT will prepare a series of inventory and analysis diagrams conveying findings from previous 
tasks and assessment of natural and built conditions of the park properties and surrounding 
context. These diagrams will begin to identify opportunities and constraints for development. 
The diagrams may include, but are subject to change: 

 Existing topography and site drainage (site and adjacent) 
 Environmental Review  
 Vegetation Cover 
 Floodplain 
 Soils (from USDA/USGS Soils Mapping) 
 Utilities (existing on-site and off-site connections) 
 Traffic and Access  
 Existing Trails Plan 

G. Park Program Assessment – North 

• SWT Team will create preliminary program diagram for the park based on findings from the 
2021 Parks Master Plan, Kickoff Workshop discussion, and findings from previous tasks. 
Program will focus on: 

 Amenities – active and passive 
 Infrastructure – utilities, circulation, site access, etc.  
 Identity / visitor experience  
 Landscape and James River engagement (visual and/or physical) 
 Options for reuse of existing home and barn 
                                                 

H. Park Site Analysis Review and Program Confirmation (Client Meeting 02 - Virtual) 

• Following development of the preliminary program diagram, SWT Team will meet with Client to 
review and discuss the site analysis and park programming. Discussion will include: 

 Presentation of site and analysis findings 
 Presentation of the existing building assessments  
 Discussion of opportunities and constraints  
 Identification of key factors for further exploration and consideration    
 2021 Master Plan and Kickoff Meeting input  
 Review of preliminary program package 
 Identification of priority program items for the park 
 Discuss identity and character for the park 

I. Site Analysis and Program Summary Document  

• Following Client Meeting 02 SWT will prepare a summary package for submittal to the Client. 
This package will include documents and meeting notes created in this phase of the master 
plan process. Following review by Client this summary document will serve as a foundation for 
Phase 2 scope of work.  

• Summary document is anticipated to include: 
 Kickoff Meeting and Site Walk Notes  
 Base Map/Survey (north only) 



t  3 14.644.5700 |  f  314.644.6378 |  7722 B ig  B end B lvd .  |  S t .  Loui s ,  M O 63119   Page  11  O F  1 5  

 

 Architectural assessment Reports – House and Barn  
 Analysis and Opportunities Diagrams 
 Park Program Summary  
 Client Meeting 02 Meeting Notes  

Meetings of Phase 1:  

• Six (6) meetings (one in-person and five virtual): 
 Kick-off meeting and Site Walk: Client Meeting 01 (1 total) 
 Client Meeting 02 - Virtual (1 total) 
 Bi-weekly Coordination Meetings: Virtual (4 total) 

PHASE 2: MASTER PLAN DEVELOPMENT (10-12 WEEKS) 

This final phase of the master plan process includes development of concept designs, design consensus, final 
master plan, and a clear plan for implementation.  

This phase is divided into three stages. Each stage includes a focused deliverable that advances a refined final 
master plan vision. These stages include: Concept Alternatives (A-C), Preferred Design (D-G), and Final Master 
Plan (H-K).  

Key meetings include Community Input Meetings 01- 02, Client Meetings 03-05, and a City Council Presentation.   

A. Design Alternatives - North  

• SWT Team will prepare up to three (3) design alternatives for the development of the north 
property with future entry alignments to the south property. These alternatives will include 
program amenities identified in Phase 1 of the planning process and each alternative will 
consider variations on visitor experience, identity, and potential uses for the house and/or barn.  

• Design alternatives will be developed as bubble diagrams that reflect the size, location, and 
relationship of the program element to the site and one another. Concept images will be 
included with the design alternatives to convey the aesthetic or visitor experiences create by 
program items and the overall park design.  

B. Client Meeting 03 – Schematic Design Alternatives Workshop  

• SWT Team will meet with Client and present the schematic design alternatives.  

• Client and SWT Team will evaluate schematics design alternatives to identify preferred 
components of one or multiple concepts. Consolidation of the concept(s) will be discussed, 
and one concept will be refined to present to the community for input.   

C. Community Input Meeting 01 – Schematic Design Review 

• This community engagement meeting will be a formal presentation. Anticipated agenda for this 
workshop includes: 

 Update on the planning process schedule and goals for this workshop.  
 Review the evaluation criteria identified with the Client.  

• SWT Team will present the Client preferred alternative (Task 2B) and obtain community input 
on this single design.  

• Schematic Design plan overview and Workshop feedback summary will be integrated into an 
online survey for expanded input by the community unable to attend workshop meeting.  

D. Preferred Concept Consolidation - North  



t  3 14.644.5700 |  f  314.644.6378 |  7722 B ig  B end B lvd .  |  S t .  Loui s ,  M O 63119   Page  12  O F  1 5  

 

• Following a period for online community input, SWT Team will meet with Client to confirm 
revisions and consolidation of a final alternative based on input from Task 2B and 2C for the 
overall park property.  

• SWT Team will make the agreed upon revisions for a preferred concept plan and submit to 
Client with narrative summary as a vision for the full park development.  

E. Final Master Plan Concept – North  

• SWT Team will prepare a more detailed master plan design for the north property based on 
the agreed upon the consolidated concept. This plan will include representative graphics for 
overall park elements including, but not limited to: 

 Amenities – active and passive 
 Park Entries, Roadways, and Parking  
 Walks, Trails, and Pedestrian Park Access 
 Roadway and Trail alignments connecting the North and South properties 
 Landscape Enhancements 
 Shelters, Restrooms, and additional park facilities 
 Footprints for reuse of existing home and barn 

F. Order-of-Magnitude Cost Opinion 

• SWT Team will prepare an order-of-magnitude cost opinion for the Final Master Plan Concept 
to schematic level anticipated construction costs for the north property. 

• SWT Team will identify operational and maintenance considerations with program amenities.  

G. Client Meeting 04 – Final Master Plan Concept Review (Virtual) 
• SWT Team will present the master plan concept and order of magnitude cost opinion to the Client 

for review and confirmation. Revisions will be made, and this approved design will become the 
basis for agency coordination and final design coordination.   

H. Implementation Action Plan 

• Based on Client Meeting 05, the SWT Team will develop an Action Plan for implementation of 
the north property master plan. This Action Plan will include: 

 Implementation priorities 
 Proposed phasing and budgets 
 Responsibilities and partners 
 Priority items for design phase  

I. Client Meeting 05– Action Plan Confirmation (in person earlier in day of City Council Presentation) 

• SWT Team will meet with Client to review the overall master plan package including the graphic 
plan and action plan.  

• Confirm with Client priorities for implementation, phasing, and budgeting with a focus on a 
Phase One implementation scope and budget. 

• SWT Team will revise documents as agreed to with Client.  

 

 



t  3 14.644.5700 |  f  314.644.6378 |  7722 B ig  B end B lvd .  |  S t .  Loui s ,  M O 63119   Page  13  O F  1 5  

 

J. Community Input Meeting 02 / City Council Presentation  

• SWT Team will present the final plan to the Nixa City Council. This presentation will include: 
 Master Plan Process 
 Final Master Plan Graphic  
 Final Cost Opinion 
 Final Action Plan with Recommended Phase One Implementation  

K. Final Master Plan Document and Deliverable 

• SWT Team will update document as agreed upon with Client following City Council presentation.  

• SWT will prepare final master plan document consisting of: 
 Final master plan graphic  
 Inspiration images to support plan graphic 
 Narrative overview of plan and amenities 
 Master plan cost opinion 
 Action Plan – phasing/budgets, priorities, responsibilities, and timeline 
 Phase One Implementation Scope of Work 
 Appendix with previous phases deliverable documents  

• SWT will provide one digital copy and one (1) bound hardcopy to City of Nixa Parks and Recreation 
Department as final project deliverable.  

Meetings of Phase 2:  

• Twelve (11) meetings (four in-person* and seven virtual): 
 Community Input Meetings – 01 and 02 (02 in combination with City Council)* 
 Client Meetings – 03, 04, and 05 (three total – two in-person and one virtual)* 
 City Council Presentation (one total)* 
 Bi-weekly Coordination Meetings - Virtual (five total) 

* Community Input Meeting 02 and City Council Presentation are same meeting. Client 
Meeting 05 is anticipated to be in-person the afternoon this same day.  

 
 
TASK II – PHASE ONE IMPLEMENTATION DESIGN SERVICES  

Task II scope and fee will be determined based on the final master plan design and identified implementation 
elements and budget. Below are the anticipated tasks that will create this scope of work.  

 

Phase 1 – Further Natural Resource Services / Phase One Environmental Assessment 

Phase 2 – Geotechnical Services 

Phase 3 – Schematic Design 

Phase 4 – Design Development 

Phase 5 – Construction Documents 

Phase 6 – Bidding and Construction Related Services 

 

 

 



t  3 14.644.5700 |  f  314.644.6378 |  7722 B ig  B end B lvd .  |  S t .  Loui s ,  M O 63119 Page  16  O F  1 6  

PROJECT AREA 

North Property 

South Property 
(utility & access alignment only) 



t  3 14.644.5700 |  f  314.644.6378 |  7722 B ig  B end B lvd .  |  S t .  Loui s ,  M O 63119 Page  14  O F  1 6  

COMPENSATION 

3.1 COMPENSATION: SCOPE OF WORK 

3.1.1 Compensation for SWT’s services performed as outlined in Attachment “A” Scope of Work will be on a 
lump-sum basis totaling $69,750.00.   The project will be billed out as a percentage of completion per phase 
as follows: 

Task I – Master Planning 

• Phase 1:  Site Analysis and Program Confirmation $24,415.00 
• Phase 2:  Master Plan Development $45,335.00 

Task II – Phase One Implementation Design Services TBD 

3.1.2 Reimbursable Expenses are expenditures as made by SWT, its employees, and consultants in the interest of 
the Project. Reimbursable Expenses include, but are not limited to the following:    

• Travel expenses (local and long distance) in connection with the Project; living expenses in connection
with out-of-town travel; Personal car mileage will be billed at the prevailing rate established by the IRS.

• Costs of reproductions, postage and handling of documents, messenger and overnight delivery services;
• Overtime-related employee expenses (If authorized in advance by the Client)
• Costs of renderings, photographs, models, and mock-ups requested by the Client;
• Expense of professional liability insurance dedicated exclusively to the Project, or additional insurance

coverage or limits requested by the Client;
• Services of professional consultants which cannot be quantified at the time of contracting; and
• Fees paid for securing approval or permitting from authorities having jurisdiction over the Project and

production and delivery of any documentation requested by the authorities.
• All taxes levied on professional services and on reimbursable expenses.
• Other, similar direct Project-related expenditures.

Reimbursable expenses shall not exceed $2,250.00 without mutual agreement between the Client and SWT.  

3.2 COMPENSATION: ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

Services not included in Attachment “A” Scope of Work will be billed on an hourly basis at the following rates: 

SWT Design Rates  CMT Rates IDeA Rates 
Partner $190.00 
Sr. Associate I $150.00 
Sr. Associate I $150.00 
Sr. Associate II $135.00 
Associate $110.00 
Designer $ 95.00 
Staff I $ 85.00 
Staff II $ 80.00 
Staff III $ 65.00 
Administrative $ 70.00

Project Manager    $180.00 
Sr. Structural Engineer II    $175.00 
Sr. Technician II   $145.00 
Aerial Mapping Specialist    $135.00 
Sr. Engineer I    $145.00 
Land Surveyor       $145.00 
Technical Manager II            $120.00 
Environmental Scientist III   $120.00  
Sr. Technician I               $115.00 
Engineer I      $125.00 
Environmental Scientist I     $125.00 
Technician I    $  90.00 

Principal Architect / Designer   $150.00 
Project Architect/ Manager       $120.00 
Intern Architect            $100.00 
CAD Tech    $  90.00 
Administrative            $  50.00 

Note: These hourly rates are 2022 rates and may be subject to change with notification of Client. 

Exhibit B



t  3 14.644.5700 |  7722 B ig  B end B lvd.  |  S t .  Louis ,  M O 63119       Page  15  O F  1 6  

 

3.3 SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES 
 
Any Supplemental Services not included in Section 3.3 Scope of Work may be provided after execution of this 
Agreement, without invalidating the Agreement. Any Supplemental Services provided in accordance with this 
Section shall entitle SWT to compensation and an appropriate adjustment to the schedule. 
 
Below is a general list, not all inclusive, of Supplemental Services NOT included within this Scope of Work:  

 
• Design Services beyond Master Planning 
• Water Quality Testing  
• 3-Dimensional Models  
• Photo-realistic Perspective Renderings 
• Market/Economic Analysis 
• Traffic Studies 
• Soils/Geotechnical investigation 
• Cultural/Natural Resource Studies 
• Structural engineering analysis / design 
• Detailed Cost Estimating & Analysis 
• Permits / Agency Coordination 
• Meetings other than those identified 

 
  




